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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on Filmed
Entertainment, New Media Exploitations and Licensing
Businesses and Cinema Business.

Cinema Business

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment is the prime revenue generator of the Group in
the Period. Approximately revenue of HK$5.5 million and gross
profit of HK$3.2 million were generated during the Year. The
Group’s revenue and gross profit from the Cinema Business for
the Year decreased as compared to revenue of HK$8.5 million
and gross profit of HK$4.9 million generated in the year ended
31 March 2022 (the “Last Year”). Due to outbreak of COVID-19
in the very beginning of Year 2020, all cinemas in Hangzhou
and Shanghai could not open since late January 2020. In July
2020, cinemas in certain low-risk areas of the PRC were
allowed to re-commence their businesses. The Group’s cinemas
in Shanghai and Hangzhou were just re-opened in August
2020. However, the COVID-19 spread in Shanghai and part of
Yangtze River Delta region again, and our cinema in Shanghai
could not open from early March 2022 to late July 2022 and
that in Hangzhou suspended the business for more than half
month during the Year. Together with the overall unsatisfactory
box office in the PRC in the Year, the Group’s revenue for the
Year decreased significantly as compared to that in the Last
Year.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group could
not agree with the landlord the adjustment on the rental charge
of the Group’s cinema in Shanghai, the Group terminated its
operation in May 2023.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2022/23

AANBRRESEEEZERBRAAF ([KAAF])
sx([E2)g((EFg ) ARREMEARTF]
LEWBAR ((AEEDBE_T_=F=A
=t—BLEFE(RFED)ZFH-

RO

Fﬁﬁf'ﬁﬁl&”vﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%~%ﬁ
BRE NS ERBAR R ER -
EAE S S

THREBRHEER oA AEE AR
ZEEEW SRR AEFEEMEL WS MNEND
7147 /&5,500,000% 7t 12 3,200,000%
BHE_T-__F=A=+—RHIEFE([EF])
EAE 2z Wk EFN D R A8,500,0000 T K
4,900,000/8 AL - NFEAKBE R A
X WS RFENZESRD AR EMRAEZ R
—E_TFH-HARRE BT -_FTF-AT

TEOEEi

AAR MM E BB ER R EELE R -
—EoTFLA REETERBRMEER E%
ERERESE AEEN LB RMMER

RZZEZTFNAEHHAM AT FTERES
BRELSERFISPE=ZAMBRER  BRMMN L
BHEREEN T _F A==
FEATARBC MRAMMNOEZRNAFEFE
BBFEA i EAFEREAEFSEERE:
REEBRANFENRZREFRERD

RBERRR AEBREREZIRAKE LS
FHRNESHBEN B AKER-_T-=F
TARLEESSE



DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

Filmed Entertainment Business

In the segment of Filmed Entertainment Business, the Group
continued to locate suitable business opportunities. However,
no appropriate target was spotted in the Year. Accordingly, no
revenue was generated in this sector during the Year.

New Media Exploitations and Licensing Business
VR (Virtual Reality] and MR (Mixed Reality]
On 9 February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo

Movie”),
Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”), an independent

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and

third party, entered into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company, the
name of which is Goal Creation Game Limited (“Goal Creation”).
The issued share capital of Goal Creation will be owned as to
49% by Bingo Movie and as to 51% by Lechuang. The JV
Company will be principally engaged in investment and
development of VR and MR projects. Pursuant to the JV
Agreement, Bingo Movie will enter into of a loan agreement
with Goal Creation, pursuant to which Bingo Movie will advance
the loan of not less than HK$25 million and not more than
HK$35 million to Goal Creation for investment and development
of relevant VR and MR projects. In September 2018, the loan
agreement has been signed and RMB28 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$32.4 million) was lent to Goal Creation.
Ancother loan of RMB16 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$18.0 million) with a term of three years was granted to
Goal Creation on 30 September 2019. The difference between
the new loan and old loan of RMB13 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$14.4 million) with the accrued interest has
been repaid to the Bingo Movie in Year 2018. The Group
withdrew the loan of BMB3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.8 million) in October 2021 and the remaining of RMB13
million (equivalent to approximately HK$14.4 million) has been
fully repaid to the Group during the Year. Since the business
environment of VR and MR in the PRC is affected by COVID-19
seriously, we still have to adopt prudent approach on our
investments, even though we are still optimistic on the
development of VR and MR projects in the long run. No
appropriate VR or MR project was located up to the date of
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

this annual report. Goal Creation will still closely monitor this
market and invest in it with the Group’s consent, if appropriate
target is spotted. For further details, please refer to the
Company’'s announcement dated 30 September 2019 and 7
November 2018.

Augmented Reality Digital Live Action Role-playing Game

On 23 December 2021 (after trading hours), the Company and
B M H b B A R A 7] (Guangzhou Jiu De Cultural and
Technology Company Limited*) (“Business Partner” or “Jiu De")
entered into a framework agreement (the “Framework
Agreement’) whereby the parties agreed to negotiate in good
faith to enter into a legally binding formal agreement (the
“Formal Agreement”) on the formation of a joint venture for
carrying out business cooperation on the development of
augmented reality digital live action role-playing game (“LARP”)
projects.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement, it was agreed that the
Company and the Business Partner shall form a joint venture in
Guangzhou, China, which shall be owned as to 51% and 49%
by the Company and the Business Partner, and the board of the
joint venture shall have 3 directors, 2 of which shall be
nominated by the Company and 1 of which shall be nominated
by the Business Partner.

The Company has been exploring business opportunities
leveraging on its movie production, licensing and derivatives,
crossover marketing and provision of interactive contents
business experience and knowledge in the past year and
considered that such business experience and the IPs of the
films would be valuable resources in developing various new
forms of entertainments to capture the ever-changing
consumer markets for entertainment and games in China. On
the other hand, LARP games have been developing rapidly in
the recent years and have become one of the most popular
entertainments for the consumers in China, particularly the
younger generations. The Business Partner is an experienced
LARP projects developer and/or its associate run the famous
LARP platform “Z 5. FE " (Room No. 9*) which is a well-
established LARP game system in China. The Company
considers the potential cooperation with the Business Partner
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

would bring a synergy of the strengths of the parties and would
be an opportunity for the Company to tap into the growing
LARP markets as well as the heated augmented reality and
virtual reality application business.

The joint venture with Jiu De, which is called “ & /N & H &8 F 31k
RH% B BR A 7" (Guangzhou Gao De Digital Cultural Technology
Limited#) has been established in the PRC in May 2022, but
the business operation is yet to be commenced.

*  The English names used in the section of “BUSINESS REVIEW" are
transliteration of their Chinese names for illustrative purpose only.

Movie-themed Tourbillon Watches

On 27 October 2022, High Art Limited (“High Art”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a joint venture
agreement with Memorigin Watch Company Limited
("Memorigin”) and Topping Mark Limited (“Topping Mark”) in
relation to the formation of a joint venture company with an
aggregate share capital of HKD2,000,000. Memorigin is an
independent third party to the Group and the first Hong Kong
brand which only produces tourbillon. Topping Mark is wholly
owned by Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive director of the
Company. The Company has been exploring business
opportunities leveraging on its movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing in the past years and
considered that such business experience and the IPs of the
films would be valuable resources in developing various new
business areas which will potentially enhance returns for the
Shareholders. Under the cooperation plan, High Art is intended
to develop, design, market and sell movie-themed tourbillon
watches together with Memorigin and Topping Mark.

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, each of
High Art, Memorigin, and Topping Mark has contributed
HK$1,200,000, HK$400,000 and HK$400,000, respectively,
in cash to the share capital of the joint venture company which
is called Bingo Group Memorigin (BGM) Limited (‘BGM”). The
equity interest of BGM is owned as to 60%, 20% and 20% by
High Art, Memorigin and Topping Mark, respectively.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, BGM has
commenced its operation and revenue is expected to be
generated in the coming financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$5.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$3.0 million compared with that of
approximately HK$8.5 million in the last year. The turnover of
the Group for the Year and the last year principally represented
revenue from Cinema Business. Loss for the Year of
approximately HK$8.4 million was recorded. As compared with
the loss of HK$14.7 million for the last year, the loss
decreased by approximately HK$6.3 million. The decrease in
loss for the year was mainly attributable to the tightened cost
control measures implemented during the Year to react the
severe business environment. Administrative expenses
decreased from approximately HK$15.8 million for the last
year to approximately HK$13.7 million for the Year. In addition,
no impairment on the Group’s fixed assets and right-of-use
assets was made during the Year, whereas impairment of
approximately HK$1.9 million was recorded in the last year. A
special gain on modification of lease terms of cinemas of
HK$2.7 million was recorded in the Year. The aforesaid
change of impairment and special gain on modification of lease
also made the decrease in loss of the Group for the Year as
compared to that for the last year.

LIQUIDITY, DEBT RATIO, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$24.2 million (2022: HK$35.4 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$23.0
million (2022: HK$11.8 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil). As at 31 March
2023, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 1.09 (2022: 0.87).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

The Group held cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$23.0 million as at 31 March 2023. Even though the debt
ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2023 is over 1, the
Company believes that it can cover the full amount of its
current liabilities of approximately HK$11.9 million as at 31
March 2023. Accordingly, the Board considers that the Group
has sufficient resources to satisfy its working capital
requirements. During the Year, the Group financed its
operations principally with its own working capital. As at 31
March 2023, the Group did not have any bank overdraft
(2022: Nil).

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 18 October 2021, the Company completed a placing and
has successfully raised approximately HK$5.8 million (before
expenses), which are detailed below.

On 27 September 2021 (after trading hours), the Company
and Enlighten Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered
into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Placing Agent agreed to place, on a best endeavour
basis, to not less than six independent placees for up to
171,080,000 new shares at a price (the “Placing Price”) of
HK$0.034 per placing share of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Placing”). These new shares rank
pari passu in all respect with the then existing shares of the
Company. The Placing was completed on 18 October 2021.

The Placing Price of HK$0.034 per placing share represents:
(i) a discount of approximately 10.5% to the closing price of
HK$0.038 per share of the Company as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 27 September 2021, being the date of the
Placing Agreement; and (ii) a discount of approximately 15.8%
to the average of the closing prices of HK$0.0404 per share
of the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last
five consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of
the Placing Agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

The Group is principally engaged in cinema investment and
management, movie production, licensing and derivatives,
crossover marketing and provision of interactive contents. The
Directors were of the view that the Placing can strengthen the
financial position of the Company for its cinema operation and
provide funding to the Company to meet any future investment
opportunities in the cinema business. The Placing also
represented a good opportunity to broaden the Shareholders’
base and the capital base of the Company. The Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) considered
that the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement were
fair and reasonable and were on normal commercial terms and
the Placing was in the interest of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whale.

The aggregate gross proceeds of the Placing were
approximately HK$5.8 million and the aggregate net proceeds
of the Placing, after deduction of expenses, were approximately
HK$5.5 million, representing a net issue price of approximately
HK$0.032 per placing share. The net proceeds from the
Placing were intended to be used for cinema investment and/
or supporting the existing cinema operation of the Group. As of
31 March 2023, the net proceeds of approximately HK$5.5
million were used for supporting the existing cinema operation
of the Group as intended.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 March
2023.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 52 (2022: 44) staff in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs including directors’
remuneration were approximately HK$6.6 million during the
Year (2022: HK$8.6 million).

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2022/23

AEETEREZHRRERER BEXRE K
APENITEEME BRMSHEIEHRESA
R-BEFRR KEFHAZEARE ZHHIR
AR EEZ P W AR R RRHEE S AEMNK
REREH IANEREG EEEFAT /AR
BREMRBEBAARRAEAEMR IR -EF (B
REIFRTER)R R EEHE 2 K RLIK
HBAFEEL R —REXGIET MEES
ANARNRA RBRZ BB -

IR £ 18 2 P8 s EA 4 55,800,000 T
MRS % IS SEBEZMERIEFHEAEE
#)/5,500,000% 7T HHE R FEITELNER
i & AR (70.032/8 7t - Bc & B I8 2 15 5B F 58
BAEERRER SIHAEBZRET R
BEE-HE-_ZTZ-_=ZF=ZA=Z+—8"4
5,500,000/ T8 RIBFEE LB TEAEA
NEFAREBRBEREE-

EARZEXKMREE

HE_T_=F=RA=1T—HLEFREITENE
NAEINRBB ARz ERKBEHLE-

1]

R-_E_=F=A=+—H AEEETBELE
BEASRE (ZE__F 44%)EEB - NAF
E - BIRABBE (BREFEH2)OAR
6,600,000/ T ( —= — — 4 : 8,600,000/5
JT) e



DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, the Company has not granted any awarded shares or
share options to the Group’s directors or employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the information of retirement benefits disclosed in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements and elsewhere
in this annual report, the information of the Group’s retirement
benefits schemes is as follows:

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
mainland China are required to participate in a defined
contribution pension scheme centrally operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain proportion of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The only obligation of the Company with
respect to the central pension scheme is to make the required
contributions. No forfeited contribution under the central
pension scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable
in future years. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group also participates in a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance (“MPF scheme”) for all employees in Hong Kong,
which is defined contribution retirement scheme. The
contributions to the MPF scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
scheme. No forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The
assets of this pension scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered funds.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2023, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2022: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2022: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material capital commitments as
at 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

OUTLOOK

As of the date of this report, the coronavirus outbreak has
killed over 6 million people and infected more than 600 million
people globally. Although the situation in China is better than
many countries in the West, the economy in China is still
shocked to a certain extent. Especially COVID-19 Omicron
Variant have spread in Shanghai in March 2022. The cinemas
in Shanghai have been ordered to be closed since then and are
just allowed to be re-opened in late July 2022. The cinema
businesses in China was affected again. Our cinema in Shanghai
has ceased to operate for nearly four months since late March
2022, and our cinema in Hangzhou had a shorter lockdown
period. It was closed for more than half month during the Year.
Lastly, the Group terminated its cinema operation in Shanghai
in May 2023. Even so, the box office in the 2023 Chinese New
Year in the PRC was over RMIBB.7 billion, which is the second
highest in the historical record. This is encouraging to the
China cinema industry and our cinema business is still benefited
accordingly.

In addition to cinema business, entertainment business,
including VR and MR businesses, is one of the commercial
sectors suffered by COVID-19 seriously in the PRC. Goal
Creation, the associate of the Group, has been trying to locate
appropriate VR and MR projects. However, no appropriate one
was located during the Year. Although the Group considers that
there is still growth potential in investment of VR and MR
projects, the Group did not extend the loan of RMB16 million to
Goal Creation and the full amount has been refunded to the
Group in September 2022. Goal Creation will continue to spot
any appropriate VR and MR projects to invest.

In spite of the wide-spreading of coronavirus mentioned above,
the Group may continue to grasp other business opportunities
in investments in cinemas in the PRC and attractive movies,
when appropriate. While the Group continued its existing
businesses, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including
online games developing and operating businesses, intellectual
property licensing business, and investments in China cultural
industry.
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DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESRBOR

As mentioned in the section of “BUSINESS REVIEW" above, the
Company has entered into the Framework Agreement with Jiu
De about the business cooperation on the development of LARP
projects. The Board is optimistic on this project but will finalise
the terms of the details of the business plan carefully in view of
difficult time of running entertainment business in the PRC
currently. In relation to the business of movie-themed tourbillon
watches, we have started its business subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, and revenue is expected to be
generated in the coming financial year.

The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFRBEFREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”) — Mr. Chiau has over 30
years of performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 30
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly (“Ms. Kelly Chow”) — Ms. Kelly
Chow was appointed as an executive Director in January 2014.
Ms. Kelly Chow has over 20 years’ ample experience in movie
production and distribution as well as licensing businesses. She
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau, an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In addition to the
Company, Ms. Kelly Chow is working with Mr. YIP Yiu Bong and
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice, both being executive Directors, in
The Star Overseas Limited (“TSOL”). Mr. YIP Yiu Bong is
currently the Head of Legal and Compliance of TSOL, the
controlling shareholder of which is Ms. Kelly Chow. Ms. CHOW
Nga Chee Alice is currently a producer of TSOL.

Mr. LAU Man Kit (“Mr. Lau”) — Mr. Lau joined the Group in
January 2014. Mr. Lau has over 40 years of extensive sales
and marketing experience in various industries, including
property management, computer technology systems and
automobiles, and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice (“Ms. Alice Chow”) — Ms. Alice
Chow is currently the Manager — Marketing, Public Relations &
Content Management of the Group, directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and a producer of TSOL. She holds
the degrees of Master of Arts in Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University, Master of Corporate Governance of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Visual Arts of Hong
Kong Baptist University. Ms. Alice Chow has over 20 years of
experience in the industry of movie production.
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Mr. YIP Yiu Bong — Mr. Yip, holds Master’s degree of Laws in
Chinese and Comparative Laws, City University of Hong Kong,
Master's degree in Professional Accounting, Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor's degree of Business
Administration (Hons) and Master’'s degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Compliance, Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Yip is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and a Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia. He is currently the
Head of Legal and Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited,
the controlling shareholder of which is Ms. Kelly Chow and she
is an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip has over 17 years of experience in legal and
compliance departments of various companies and legal firms.
He joined the Group as a non-executive Director in June 2020
and re-designated as an executive Director in March 2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHOI Mei Ping (“Ms. Choi”) — Ms. Choi has over 20
years’ ample marketing experience in the airline industry. She is
currently working in an international airline company. She has
joined the Group in November 2014.

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (“Mr. Tsui”) — Mr. Tsui is currently an
executive director of CBK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428)
and was an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148) from April 2020 to December
2020. The issued shares of these two companies are listed on
GEM the Stock Exchange. He is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. Tsui holds
a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie University in
Australia. He has over 25 years of extensive experience in
corporate finance and accounting.

Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching (“Ms. Chan”) — Ms. Chan is currently
a manager of a corporate secretarial services company in
Hong Kong and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a degree in
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting & Accounting Technology)
from Curtin University of Technology. She has over 10 years’
accounting and company secretarial experience in listed
companies in Hong Kong.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2022/23

RRBRBEE — ERE BABBUDAEFEH
FHELPEREBETEM FERIRNEEXS
AERETREUNERREARIMER (KE)
BTEURARERRAREERTBU -EE
ERBFME FHHEXERERABURER
BANBELAERRENFFRAAELENE
BURBMNEHIASHESAR -REANRE
BEINERARNEERARAEA ZAAH
BEERBERBAXEZL  ERARNRARNRITES
REZBRR - ERERSRAAREMITHIER
NERAFEEBERI7FNER - RN _T =
TENAMAREE ETFRATES LN
T —F-AERAEABTES-

BIAFRTESE

BEXFPr+([$ELxt]) — B2LXEIRMEXR
BEOF MBS ERER - MEAMN —KE
BRMZEARIE - BR T —MFE+—AMAR
£H-

HKBEE (TREE]) —BRELEBAMARK
TR AR AT (DAY :8428) MITEE K
R-E_EFENMAE_ZE_ZTE+_A AR
FEEEEGRAR (ROHR:8148) MITE
FoMR QTN EITIRMD IR FTGEM
IR AEEEHAASEFRSERREMNE
TR AR ESTAM - RAEERFRMEBERX
B BB LB N R ST B
BiBESTHEE L5 -

Bat([R&tl) —REATBRHEREE
—RARWERBLRAZLE WEREBEG
Bl A& & 8 - R & £ #5 A Curtin University of
Technology B 28 (&5t R @5 T) 2+ 2410
BREANEE LT RARBIOF 2 &5t KRR AW

2



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELWE

OVERVIEW

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report in this annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”). The Company is
concerned to have high standards of corporate governance. It
is important because the Board believes that good quality
corporate governance would assist the management to monitor
the Company’s business activities effectively and thus interests
of the shareholders of the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations stated on pages 22 to 25 below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 17 to 18 of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise
of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect
the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will
review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to
continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company's performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, including five executive Directors, namely Mr. CHIAU
Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, Mr. LAU Man Kit, Ms.
CHOW Nga Chee Alice and Mr. YIP Yiu Bong; and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHOI Mei
Ping, Mr. TSUI Wing Tak and Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching. Mr. CHIAU
Sing Chi and Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly are siblings. Mr. YIP Yiu
Bong is currently the Head of Legal and Compliance of The Star
Overseas Limited (“TSOL"), the controlling shareholder of which
is Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and she is an executive director and
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Ms. CHOW Nga
Chee Alice is currently a producer of TSOL. Save as disclosed,
the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material /relevant relationship(s) with each other.

Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).
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Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Notes Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EEpE i3 EXge8 BNLZES9E FMZEe9S93 REZ8EE E VN
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi BER%E 10/(13) N/A i N/A R H N/A i 0/(1)
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly X ER L 13/(13) N/A i 2/(2) N/A i 0/(1)
Mr. LAU Man Kit B¢ it 13/(13) N/A i N/A TiaEH N/A T F 1/(1)
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice BBz L 13/(13) N/A i@ N/A 7N N/A T 1/(M
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERAxE 13/(13) N/A T H N/A TEH N/A T r 1/
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BXTLL 12/(13) 5/(6) 2/(2) 3/(3) 1/01)
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak fRkfFELE 13/(13) 6/(6) 2/(2) 3/(3) 1/11)
Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching BBt 1 9/(9) 3/(3) N/A T F N/A i F 1/01)
Mr. ONG King Keung FRAETE 2 o/(1) 1/01) N/A T iEF N/A i F N/A N
Note 1: appointed on 29 July 2022 M1 R _FEA-TLBEZE

Note 2: resigned on 20 May 2022
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2023.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code C.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board's current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.

With reference to Code C.2.2, in each Board meeting, the
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would
generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code C.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
Unless urgent matters to be discussed, it is the Board's
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board
at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
reqguest additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.
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With reference to Code C.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code C.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.

With reference to Code C.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code C.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually,
to consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company
and the Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code C.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.
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With reference to Code C.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

With reference to Code E.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code F.2.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code C.B.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH THE GEM LISTING RULES IN
RELATION TO BOARD COMPOSITION

Mr. ONG King Keung (“Mr. Ong”) has tendered his resignation
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 20
May 2022. Following Mr. Ong’s resignation, (i) Mr. Ong also
ceased to be the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), and a member of each of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”)and the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”).
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As a result of Mr. Ong’s resignation, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee comprises only two members. It
results in non-compliance with the requirements under Rule
5.05(1), Rule 5.05A and Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Rule 5.05(1)

Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Following the resignation
of Mr. Ong as an independent non-executive Director, the
Company only had two independent non-executive Directors.

Rule 5.05A

Pursuant to Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules, an issuer
must appoint independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the board. Following the resignation of Mr.
Ong as an independent non-executive Director, the Company
only had two independent non-executive Directors which do not
represent one-third of the Board.

Rule 5.28

Pursuant to Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the audit
committee must comprise a minimum of three members.
Following the resignation of Mr. Ong as an independent non-
executive Director, the Audit Committee only had two members.

Following the appointment of Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee the Company on 29 July 2022, the
Company shall comply with the requirement of Rules 5.05(1),
5.05(A) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e)
to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance policy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’s report
attached to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2023 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Yin ("Mr. Chan”), who is a director of an external
service provider, was appointed as the company secretary in
November 2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive
Directors of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
CHOI Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. ONG King Keung (resigned on
20 May 2022), Mr. TSUI Wing Tak, Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching
(appointed on 29 July 2022) and one executive Director, Ms.
CHOW Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHOI Mei
Ping (Chairman), Mr. ONG King Keung (resigned on 20 May
2022), Mr. TSUI Wing Tak, Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching (appointed
on 29 July 2022) and one executive director, Ms. CHOW Man
Ki Kelly (cessation on 8 April 2022).

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.

Procedure and Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of Director(s) including independent non-
executive Director(s) in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

i The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board, develop
a list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at
the outset to focus the search effort;
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The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
considers appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(a) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length

of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications, including accomplishment and

experience in the relevant industries in which the

Group’s business is involved:;

(d) Independence;
(e) Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

(g) Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
considers appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;
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vi. The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package
of such selected candidate;

vi. The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration;

vii. The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

ix.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.

Board Diversity

To improve the performance of the Company, the Board has
adopted policies on board diversity. The Board believes that
board diversity can be achieved by taking into account various
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, race, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, term of services and other talents. All the
appointments have been made based on the Company's
business models and specific needs from time to time, and
candidates have been assessed with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board on objective business conditions. The
Nomination Committee will be mainly responsible for identifying
suitable and competent candidates for Board members and
assessing such candidates in light of objective conditions. As a
part of the annual performance review for the efficiency of the
Board, considerations of the Nomination Committee will be
balanced between skills and experience as required for
accomplishing the business targets of the Company and
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diversity factors. To achieve board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will discuss and develop measurable objectives from
time to time, and propose the same to the Board for adoption
and implementation. Generally speaking, the selection of
candidates by the Nomination Committee shall be based on a
range of diverse perspectives including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and term of services.
However, the final decision will depend on the strengths of the
candidates and their prospective contributions to the Board.
The Board may improve one or more diversified perspectives
from time to time, and measure the progress on such basis.
The Nomination Committee will review the policy from time to
time, including conducting assessments on the effectiveness of
the policy. The Nomination Committee will also discuss any
amendment that may be necessary, and submit amendment
proposals to the Board for approval.

Please refer to the disclosure in page 69 of this annual report
for the gender ratio of the Company’'s employees as at 31
March 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,

risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (Chairman),
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping, Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching (appointed on 29
July 2022) and Mr. ONG King Keung (resigned on 20 May
2022).
Committee reviewed the annual, interim and quarterly results

In the meetings held during the Year, the Audit

of the Company and made recommendations to the Board and
the management in respect of the Company’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control system.
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Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2023, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consoclidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report attached to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company’s business objectives.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2023, fees for the Company's
external auditor for audit services and non-audit services were
HK$900,000 and HK$250,000 respectively.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 82 to 88.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.
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Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.

Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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The Board EX &
e Has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management system and internal controls systems;
BEBEAGEZ AREEHIER ARG
*  Sets strategic objectives;
I E R B AR
e Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
T A B R ) T P B B R A 2 PR
e Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and
ERTZARMERMAZARER: Rk
*  Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
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identification, Management &2 /& mitigation of risk
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mitigation of risk Rt B RERERERERABERHEE & level and across
at corporate level ¢ Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide. functional areas
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*  Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the Year, the Company has engaged independent
professional advisors (the “Advisors”) to carry out the internal
audit functions by performing independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Advisors have conducted an
annual review (the “Annual Review”) of and made
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. Based on the
Annual Review the Board considered the risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No significant
areas of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance controls, and risk management functions of the
Group has been identified. During the review, the Board also
considered the resources, qualification and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training and budget were adequate.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In order to bring the Articles of the Company in line with
Appendix 3 to the GEM Listing Rules which has come into effect
on 1 January 2022, the amended and restated Articles were
adopted by way of a special resolution passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 29
September 2022.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company)  (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Naotice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Unit 202, 2/F,
Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Board is well aware of the importance of maintaining
proper contact with shareholders and strives to enhance its
communication with them. Shareholders can visit the website
of the Company (www.bingogroup.com.hk) for the latest
information of the Group, including quarterly, interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars and corporate governance
related policies. Press releases are also posted on the website
of the Company in a timely manner.

General meetings serve as a communication channel between
the Board and shareholders. The Group regards such a
meeting as an important activity of the Company during the
year. All Directors and senior management would attend the
meeting as much as they can. The chairman of the annual
general meeting proposes separate resolutions for each of the
independent matters. Members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
external auditors, independent financial advisers and external
lawyers would also attend the general meeting to answer
questions from shareholders as appropriate. During the year,
the Company held one annual general meeting. Details of each
Director’s attendance at the general meetings are set out on
page 21 of this Annual Report.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretarial department whose contact details are as follows:

The Company Secretarial Department,
Bingo Group Holdings Limited

Unit 202, 2/F, Chinaweal Centre
414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness. During the year, the
Company has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy
and confirmed that it has been effectively implemented.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the Directors’ Report in this annual report for the year ended
31 March 2023 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2023 by operating segment is set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 92. The
Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 212. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 16.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Being an environmental friendly corporation, the Company will
not print hard copy of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report. The environmental policies and performance of
the Group are disclosed in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report included in this Annual Report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anticorruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board established a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
January 2019. The Company endeavours to maintain adequate
working capital to develop and operate the business of the
Group and to provide stable and sustainable return to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record in
the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and the Company’s articles of association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.
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The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
out in notes 28, 29 and 31 to the consoclidated financial
statements respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for 1.56% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 1.03%.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted to
95.71% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
85.05%.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi

Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Mr. LAU Man Kit

Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. CHOI Mei Ping

Mr. ONG King Keung (resigned on 20 May 2022)
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak

Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching (appointed on 29 July 2022)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Mr. CHIAU Sing
Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and Mr. LAU Man Kit shall retire
by rotation in accordance with Article 84(1). All of them being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat.

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2023 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Policy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
policy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be natified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
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provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to herein; or (iii) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company

AR ARG BT Mz BmIOR R H (i) R
B GEM LT BIE5.46E5.67KEMES#
TREXDZHRERAMGARNRNTE NPT

L A .
WmYORE

(a) RELQXFARGBZER

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EARAT
BEITRA
EEpE EmME RO EE BMOB DL
Mpr. CHIAU Sing Chi Beneficial owner 2,757,352 2.69%
JE 2 Bt e A EmDBEAA
Held by trust (Note 1) 40,212,124 39.17%
HIEFERSE (MaE1)
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly Held by trust (Note 1) 40,212,124 39.17%
AR+ mIEFERA (M)
Notes: Bt -
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. #Z% &1 Ty A Beglobal Investments

Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned
by a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which
are Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and their
family.

2. The total number of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2023 was 102,644,466.

Limited )% Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited 2 % & & i °
Beglobal Investments Limited } Golden
Treasure Global Investment Limited ¥
ARENEETERBERMEE  BAXE
ZEIRERB2WNEGTEHEERE R
Ao

2. AAER-ZE-_=F=A=+—HZE
BT A28 A102,644,4660% °
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(b)

Long positions in the underlying shares of the
Company

Please refer to page 49 of this annual report for the
share options held by the Directors as at 31 March
2023.

Pursuant to a subscription and settlement agreement and
the supplemental agreement entered into between Mr.
CHIAU Sing Chi ("Mr. Chiau”) and the Company on 7
December 2021 and 28 December 2021 respectively,
the convertible bonds in principal of HK$13,000,000
were issued to Mr. Chiau and 69,080,090 number of
Shares which would be allotted and issued upon the
exercise in full of the convertible bonds, which were held
by Mr. Chiau, as at 31 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2023, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in
the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein:

Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

FREREHMA TR G5RHRK
fnzigsz

HEFHM R_T_=F=A=+—H ' UT
AL (AFARBEZTHRSTHRABR) BN
SRR T HEA LB EREBNREZESF R
HI B GHIEXVEFE2830 B 2 R AR AR R
LB EaadORR (i) AR E R X
B EAEARRARA (BT ES5AE ARNRE
AERATEARBERNKERARZERAE L
R ) EE10% A EiE s 2 #Ean SRR+ 3liii)
RI5 B 5 K H B 15 0 533615 78 iC B0 5% 16 P
MERMZ ERIOXE

RAXBDRGREBRO Z2HFA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
(EENUNCITE: &5

RERERE R0 8 E BARBAE DL
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (#5£1) 40,212,124 39.17%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1] (Kfz£1) 40,212,124 39.17%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) (#/72) 40,212,124 39.17%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2) (#1:2) 7.250,000 7.06%
KO Kin Hang = #17 5,135,500 5.00%

Notes:

1. Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki, Kelly and their family
are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.

2. Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 32,962,124 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 32.11% of the
issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
7,250,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
7.06% of the issued share capital of the Company) through
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31 March
2023.

Wizt -

1. RAEkiE AXEZEIRERBAE—E2#E
7L 2 %z A > Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited
([Sinostar |) AZ 2 EETEZZFEAMERZSE
{25t 2 &5t A ' Sinostar /& Treasure Offshore
Holdings Limited 2 M — % - MZ 2 A&
Beglobal Investments Limited 2 M — % »

2. WRZ-ZT_=%=H=+—H Beglobal
Investments Limited & # # £32,962,124[%
KAallH (hARAE #ETRALD
32.11%) - 17 3% i@ Golden Treasure Global
Investment Limited & # £ 5 7,250,000/% &
NARRD (BARATBEITIRAL7.06%) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees
and participants who have contributed to the Group, and had
expired on 14 August 2022. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to certain
employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor, business
partner, promoter, service provider, customer, supplier,
consultants, agents and advisers or any person who, in the sole
discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the
Group in recognition of their contribution to the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, no share of the Company
was available for issue under the Scheme, and the Company
had 5,662,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme,
which represented approximately 5.5% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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Set out below is the schedule of movement of the Company’s

Options during the year ended 31 March 2023:

TXEINARBEREREE T _=F=H

=t-BLFENRBEEE:

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
options held options options options options held
as at granted exercised cancelled/ as at
1 April during during lapsed during 31 March
Category Option type 2022 the year the year the year 2023
R-BZZF FEE RIBZZ=H
mA-B ZXEERHz XEEfTfHEz =HH &%z ZA=t-H
<Yl BRESR AEBRERE BREHE BREHE BREHE FMiEBREZE
(Note 1) (Note 2] (Note 2] (Note 2]
(Bat1) (fa2) (Mzt2) (Mzt2)
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T T
Directors
B=
CHOW Man Ki Kelly 2018A 750 - - - 750
Ehe 2021A 854 - - - 854
CHOW Nga Chee Alice 2018A 750 - - - 750
& 3 4% 2021A 854 - - - 854
Employees 2018A 730 - - - 750
E&
Advisors
B
HAO Jing 2020A 850 - - - 850
HER
CHAN Ka Yin 2021A 854 - - - 854
REE
Total £ &t 5,662 - - - 5,662

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: The number of share options mentioned are adjusted to reflect

the share consolidation effective on 2 May 2019 and 16

March 2022 (as the case may be).

WaET - ARRERBBREZ FBERGEA M IBHRE

Mt RE33H 5 o

WiE2 : itERESEERABURR_Z-NFR

AZBRER-ZE-_F=A+B(BFER
ME) MBI E B
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2023.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 are
set out in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report summarizes several subjects of Bingo Group
Holdings Limited (“Bingo”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group” or “we”) of business practices for the
Environmental, Social and Governance (referred to as the “ESG”)
report (referred to as the “Report”) and its relevant
implemented policies and strategies in relation to the Group’s
operational practices and environmental protection. For
information regarding corporate governance, please refer to

the “Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report 2023.

The Report covers the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
2023 (the “Reporting Period” or “FY2023").

REPORTING SCOPE

The scope of the Report covers the ESG performances of the
Group’s principal operating activities spanning over the period
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. The Group is principally
engaged in movie production, licensing and derivatives,
crossover marketing and provision of interactive contents
(“Filmed Entertainment, New Media Exploitations and Licensing
Businesses”) and cinema investment and management (“Cinema

Business”).

The reporting scope includes all areas of business over which
the Group has financial significance and operational influence,
as well as those of ESG significance to the Group and its
stakeholders. Since no revenue was generated in the “Filmed
Entertainment, New Media Exploitations and Licensing
Businesses” and the “Cinema Business” is the prime revenue
generator of the Group in the Period, the content of the report
mainly focuses on the main business operation of the cinema
cities (“the Cinema Cities”) in PRC, and overall performance of
the fulfillment of sustainability and corporate social responsibility
for the Reporting Period.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK™).
To ensure the accuracy of environment key performance
indicators, we engaged a professional consultancy firm to
conduct the calculation and preparation of the Report.

In preparation of this Report, the Group has complied with all
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide and followed the four reporting principles — materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency, in the preparation of the
Report.

Materiality

The Group reports on issues that are considered as posing
significant impacts on environment and society and are
important to stakeholders. The issues are presented together
with the Group’s management measures in the Report.

Quantitative

Information regarding the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation references, and sources of key
conversion factors used for these key performance indicators
("KPIs") is stated wherever appropriate.

Balance

Information is disclosed as objectively as possible to provide
stakeholders with an unbiased picture of the Group’s overall
ESG performance.

Consistency

Consistent methodologies are adopted when calculating the
qguantitative KPIs, unless otherwise specified. Reasons will be
provided for any restating of information published in the
Report.
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BOARD STATEMENT — ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board understands its overall responsibility for overseeing
and implementing the Group’s ESG strategy, and will integrate
sustainable development into the Group’s specific business in
accordance with the company’s business development. The
Group has formed a top-down ESG structure in adhering to its
sustainable development philosophy. The Board is responsible
for overseeing the ESG issues of the Group, formulating ESG
strategies and assessing and determining the risks associated
with ESG,
management and internal control of the Group. The senior

in order to ensure the effectiveness of risk

management is responsible for the job allocation based on the
ESG strategies and reporting to the Board about the progress
of ESG tasks and the Group’s annual report. The administration,
human resources, internal control and board secretarial
departments are responsible for per forming ESG tasks,
including collection of stakeholders’ opinions, performing
internal and external materiality assessment, preparing the
Report, and reporting to the senior management about the
progress of ESG tasks and the preparation of the Report. The
Board will also regularly check the implementation and changes
of various ESG indicators, and optimize ESG targets when
appropriate and feasible, so as to ensure that the Group’s
corporate development will minimize the negative impact on the
environment and society.

APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Embracing the value of sustainability to evaluate the operations
environment and identify room for improvement in operations,
we have formulated a set of ESG-oriented policies to promote
and manage material environmental, social and governance
issues, which include product responsibility, labor practices,
anti-corruption and environmental protection. In the long run,
we are committed to promoting the value of sustainability and
integrate sustainable development principles in the Group and
our business partners as a responsible corporate citizen. \We
identify and evaluate the materiality of the diverse range of ESG
topics that are interrelated with our business operations (See
corresponding section: Materiality Assessment) to form our
future corporate direction.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that identifying and addressing stakeholders
view lay a solid foundation to the long-term growth and success
of the Group. The stakeholder engagement helps the Group to
develop a business strategy that meets the stakeholders’ needs
and expectation, enhances the ability to identify risk and
strengthens important relationships. Stakeholders can deliver
their valuable opinions on ESG to us through various channels.

The below table presents key stakeholders of the Group how
the Group communicate with them through variety of
communication channels.

EEAVE-E 2

AEERE B MEAERNENERRAEE
MERERMEANEE TEENER -FHES
HEEBAKREGTENTEFNERREHE
MBS  RITRAREREN NEEEZME -
FEUBEBIAAE ARMREYRE £
EREBRETHMNEREER

TENMBTARENEEZRNE  AERAKERE
BEBERBERNEETEB

NGIEEDS

e

Stakeholders Communication Channels
i E BERE
Government and regulatory agencies e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other
BT R BS B A public information

FH-hHHmE RE LA REARMEALEMAFER

* Meetings

L
Shareholders and investors e Annual general meetings and other general meetings of
KEERRKRE shareholders

BRBEFREREMERAE

e Company website
e Announcements

e Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other
public information
FIRFERE BE HERTAREURLMDBEN

Employees e Training
BT =l
e Meetings
s

RIRFHE

BEA S

e Performance evaluation

e | eisure activities
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Stakeholders Communication Channels
BHE BERE
Customers e Email and customer service hatline
=P BH REFIRGEABER
* Mobile application
FHERAER
e Product and service feedback
2o MR I 88
Suppliers e Regular review
HER TE IR &
e Meetings
L
e On-site visits
B &5

The operations of the Group have impacts on various
stakeholders, while stakeholders have different expectations of
the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continuously
strengthen its communications with its stakeholders, and
extensively collect stakeholders’ opinions on various ways that
would lead to a more comprehensive materiality analysis.
Meanwhile, the Group would also enhance the reporting
principles in terms of quantitative, balance and consistency, and
define the presentation of content and information of the
Report in a way which better conforms to stakeholders’
expectations.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In the context of the latest sustainability landscape, the Group
has determined the following 21 ESG Materiality topics that are
deemed to have impact on the environment and society through
our operations.
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ESG Aspects
RE HERERLE

ESG Materiality Topics for the Group
AEEMEEZRE HERERTE

A. Environmental
Responsibility
REEME

A1.Emissions and Wastes Generated

EEOERY LEEY

1. Emission Management (Air Pollutants and
Greenhouse Gas)
PEEE (BRIEZERE)

2. Wastes Management

BEENEE
A2.Use of Resources 3. Energy Saving
Bk A A
A3.The Environment and Natural Resources | 4. \Water Consumption
RERRARER FKE R
5. Effluent Discharges
ARBE

A4.Climate Change

6. Climate Change Strategy

RIRE( & 5 SRR B L BB
B. Social Responsibility | B1.Employment 7. Employee Remuneration and Benefits
HeEL B B THMLEF
8. Diversity and Equal Opportunity
SRR TERE
B2. Workplace Health and Safety 9. Occupational Safety and Health
TIESMaRERET S BE2e MR
B3. Development and Training 10.Employee Training and Development
BRI BTHIIRER
B4. Labor Standards 11. Anti-child and Forced Labor
BT AR BIEET R#EBEES
BS. Supply Chain Management 12.Supply Chain Management
e E e e
BB. Product Responsibility 13. Customer Service Quality
EmEAE RERBEEE
14.Product/Service Quality and Safety
En/REEENLS
15.Personal Data Privacy Protection
BAERELRE
16.Product Research and Development
EmiE

17.Intellectual Property Rights Protection
HBERRE

18.Data Security

BELE
19. Operational Safety Management
BELRRER
B7. Anti-Corruption 20. Anti-corruption
REA k&S
B8. Community Investment 21. Community Investment and Engagement
HERE HEIREMSH
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During the Reporting Period, we obtained an update of the
materiality assessment on each aspect of ESG from internal
stakeholders, including directors, senior management and
middle management through questionnaires from the
perspectives of long-term development strategies, management
enhancement, urgency of investment and competitiveness
advantages of the Group. We will also continually pay attention
to all stakeholders, constantly review and update the materiality
assessment, and include external stakeholders when the
conditions are appropriate, so as to achieve a more accurate
and thorough understanding of the demands of various parties,
and to provide guidance and direction to the enterprise’s
business operations and controls over environmental and social
governance.

Based on the analysis and summary of the results of the
materiality assessment from all stakeholders, we have formed
the following materiality assessment matrix, in which following
substantial issues are disclosed in the materiality assessment
matrix as the major influential aspects of the Group's
sustainable development. While taking all environmental and
social responsibilities into consideration, the Group will be
paying more attention to these areas.

RBEFE HAABESHEARAIEBRRAERE
B BRREA REZVUELBFEEEAE
AAFFHNE (BRES SMEEABRTE
EEAB)RBHRE HEREATHHMNK
HEBEUEF G -RMATSEERIMERND
Bivimad R EHEBR MR WHEGRFEE R
AN I - DA ERE N 2 EM B R B T F R
T REEFHEERHREREEEBHNEH
ReMtiEsI kM-

REHMAFNEEZEZLEFEERODNT LB
B RASLTATEREFGER EHER
AR EEN T EEEHEIAKER
FEZRNIEFEE@ -NEEMARENT
SRER AKREHLERILEFIE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT MATRIX

ERMFMEERE
A
®11,18
@ ®19@13,14,15
m o9
= o7
0 gy 2004 03
<% o6 01705 @38 ®1
hE ® 10
o
E & e 2
Ll 4 ® 16
of
Z £
- ®21
£
= el
<
IMPORTANCE TO OPERATIONS
HERNER
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The following chart shows the level of materiality ESG topics

ATEERRESERE HEMEATENER

ranking: MO T B
11,18 Anti-child and Forced Labor and Data Security
PIEETRRESHNEIEL S
13,14,15 | Customer Service Quality, Product/Service Quality and Safety and Personal Data Privacy

Protection
EFPRBEE En/ REEEML 2 REAEREBILRE

19 Operational Safety Management
HELRER

9 Occupational Safety and Health
BEZENERE

3 Energy Saving
EN#IRETR

4 Water Consumption
RKER

7 Employee Remuneration and Benefits
8 T R AR A

20 Anti-corruption
R&ES

12 Supply Chain Management
e e

To address topics that matter most to our stakeholders, more
depth is detailed for topics of high materiality throughout the
Report.

COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK

We make every effort to ensure consistency between the
Chinese and English versions of this Report. However, in the
event of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

The progress of the Group depends in part on valuable
comments from stakeholders. Should you have any opinions or
suggestions regarding the content of this Report, you are
welcome to share with the Group at info@bingogroup.com.hk.

A TEERHRMAFHNERBMINER  NREY
AEAREEEMNETEET T EFANTA-

ERRRER
RIS R — 115 N MR AR R EARA A —

B - INBERIRER » BARSRA B2

AEENERAERFHENBEEER -0 #H
THARRE AR B EREF R BIERE
N B R 2% % info@bingogroup.com.hk °
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

In order to seek long-term environmental sustainability, the
Group is increasingly prudent in controlling the consumption of
resources as well as its emissions, and has strictly adhered
with the applicable environmental laws and regulations during
its daily operations. The Group acknowledges the threats of
climate change and realizes that we have responsibilities to
better manage energy use to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions. Since the Group is principally engaged in film
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents and cinema investment and
management, which does not involve direct emission of large
amounts of polluted air, discharge of pollutants into water and
land, and generation of hazardous waste. Due to the nature of
the Group’s business, the Group’s daily operations mainly involve
indirect greenhouse gas emissions, which are mainly due to the
use of electricity, paper consumptions in our office setting and
business air travel. The Group does not generate material
hazardous wastes and the direct impact to the environment is
immaterial.

\We are committed to reducing impact on the environment. \We
strive to minimize environmental footprint through energy
conservation and waste reduction. The following sections
disclose the Group’'s approaches and data on energy
consumption, GHG emissions data and waste.

Aspect A1: Emissions and Wastes Generated
Energy and greenhouse gas (GHG] emissions!”

The Group strictly follows the low-carbon development goals of
China’'s 14th Five-Year Plan, promotes corporate green
transformation, and strives to realize the corporate vision of
carbon neutrality. In view of this, we formulated and strictly
implemented administrative policies that regulate emissions and
discharge of exhaust gas, wastewater, waste solids and
greenhouse gas generated in office areas. In addition, we has
formulated the Environmental Protection Policy [ GRREE) )
to provide clear guidelines on the daily environmental protection
for our staff starting with the details such as management of
use of electricity, water, paper and office supplies.
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The operations and activities of the Group does not directly
generate any hazardous air emissions and pollutants. The
Group does not generate any direct GHG emissions (Scope 1).
Energy consumption and GHG emissions at the Group are
mainly contributed by electricity consumption in offices and thus
we only report on the indirect energy use and indirect GHG
emissions (Scope 2) of the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the total GHG emissions were
approximately 339 tonnes, representing a decrease of 138
tonnes, compared with the figure in the last fiscal year
(‘FY2022”). The Group will continue to monitor and document
its GHG emissions and/or other environmental data annually
and compare it with last year’'s data to aid the Group in further
developing emission reduction targets in the future. The
following charts summaries the GHG emissions of the Group
during the Reporting Period:

AEELENEPTEERELEMNAETRE
BE S RY) AREBEWRAERREREEN
(BE—) AEEMRRERMEEREBHE
ERANBAEREMRIINBENRES - Hilt
BFRBENEERZEREALRBZRER
B (BE=) -

RBEFEAN BEREBYHEELNHIZ9ME
RE-—WHEE ([ZE=Z8F]) B 1381 -
AEEBEESFHHEAETREERE HE
IR R EIRETEE R Racsy W F—FEEHIE
B UAEERBRE—SHERFEREZ T
FIBERBAAEENREFEANRNAEREBH
e

Summary of Annual Carbon Emissions

FERIRBERE
Scope 2 Unit FY2023 Fya2022
#wEZ Bfs —T_=MF —T-_@F
GHG Emission tonnes CO2-equivalent 339 477
B E R BEK RWE— S L E &
GHG Emission Density tCO,e per thousand revenue in HKD 0.061 0.056

BERR R T

“EbIRE EBME S TIE TS

' Remarks:

i. Scope 1 refers to direct GHG emissions from sources resulted
from activities such as stationery and mobile fuel combustion and
GHG emissions from equipment and systems, which are not
applicable to the Group’s operations. Only Scope 2 GHG emissions
will be accounted as it refers to the consumption of purchased
electricity.

SEEE
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ii. For Mainland China operations, GHG emissions associated with
electricity purchased are calculated using the GHG Protocol Tool
for Energy Consumption in China (Version 2.1) issued by
Greenhouse Gas Protocol and the 100-year Global Warming
Potentials, provided by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) in its Fifth Assessment Report (CO2: 1, CH4: 28,
N20: 265).

iil. For Hong Kong office, GHG emissions associated with electricity
purchased are based on latest available emission factors provided
by power companies.

Measures to reduce emission

In order to effectively reduce the emissions generated by the
Group, the Group has adopted several measures for the
management of employee travels, including but not limited to
strict approval for long-distance travel arrangements to reduce
unnecessary travel and encouraging employees to use public
transportation. The generation density of GHG Emission has
increased compared to last fiscal year, primarily due to the
decrease in revenue for the group in the fiscal year 2023. By
strengthening the measures to reduce emission, we aim to
achieve the target of maintaining or reducing the generation
density of GHG Emission based on FY2023.

Wastes Management

Owing to the Group’s business nature, the Group in its ordinary
course of business does not produce material hazardous
wastes. The non-hazardous wastes mainly come from various
types of recyclables wastes such as paper and non-recyclable
daily office wastes such as office supplies and plastics,
generated from the offices and cinema cities of the Group. \We
encourage recycling of wastes. For nonrecyclable items, we
collect and sort them to be disposed of by recyclers with
professional qualification on a regular basis. The operations of
the Group do not require the use of the packaging material,
therefore the relevant data is not recorded.
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During the Reporting Period, the data of other non-hazardous
wastes produced are as follows:

RBEFEN ARBEEENEMBEZEZYN
RN

Summary of FY2022 and FY2023 Non-Hazardous Waste Data
R CHER-FCCHMFRTERVBEME

FY2023 Fyz2022
—BoCMEFE —T-—MHF
Non-hazardous Waste Produced — General BEBREVEE——RED

waste (kg) (F7) 28,289 32,484
Intensity of Non-hazardous Waste Produced BEBREVELE - —REDEE

— General waste (kg/Sales Volume in (F5=,/FExTWzE)

HKD'000) 5.12 3.82
Paper Consumption (kg) R4 (F5) 75.94 82.92
Intensity of Paper Consumption (kg/Sales RBEE (Tr/ FTHETlE)

Volume in HKD'00O) 0.01 0.01

Measures to reduce waste generation

The Group actively promotes green office practices, aiming to
minimize the generation of wastes and maximize the efficient
use of resources. In terms of paper consumption, the Group
promotes a paperless office, office papers were from recyclable
sources. The Group focuses on purchasing supplies
manufactured from recycled materials such as tissue paper.
The Group also encourages its staff members to scale down
font size and reduce paper margins and set up double-sided
printing. We continue to improve the paperless office, create
the office automation (OA) system to perform electronic
approval process, reduce the number of document printing,
and recommend the circulation of electronic documents on a
daily basis. The density of non-hazardous wastes has increased
compared to last fiscal year, primarily due to the decrease in
revenue for the group in the fiscal year 2023. By strengthening
the measures to reduce waste generation, we aim to achieve
the target of maintaining or reducing the generation density of
non-hazardous wastes based on FY2023.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

The Group understands that effective resource management is
closely related to environmental protection and corporate
sustainability goals. Due to the nature of offices’ operations and
business, the major resources consumed by the Group are
electricity, water and paper. The Green Policy provides various
energy-saving measures for office, including:

° Enabling the off-timer function of office equipment such as
photocopiers, printers and computer monitors in its
offices, allowing such equipment which have been idle for
a long time to automatically power down;

o Setting an appropriate office temperature; and

° When purchasing new office equipment, preference will
be given to those with Grade 1 energy label.

The Group incorporate environmental issues into its business
plan systematically, including formulating more detailed
corporate internal guidelines for environmental protection, as
well as formulating sustainable development policies and road
maps in the long term and proactively promoting a number of
environmental protection campaigns.

Energy

As energy consumption is closely linked to global warming, the
Group has been striving to improve energy management.
Therefore, we have implemented electricity saving measures in
the office to raise the awareness of all our employees on
environmental protection. \We encourage our staff to turn off all
unnecessary lighting systems and other electronic devices,
such as printers, computers, etc., to avoid idling of electrical
appliances. Meanwhile, partial lightings of the office have been
installed with light-emitting diodes instead of compact
fluorescent lamps which can reduce electricity consumption as
compared with compact fluorescent lamps. During the
reporting period, the total electricity consumption decreased by
31.7% compared with last year. It is mainly due to the
suspension of the operation days of the cinema cities and the
reduction of the number of film screenings in response to the
regulations of the local government.
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Energy consumption BENFHFE

Unit FY2023 Fya2022

= hivi —EC=ME T —BF
Electricity Consumption kWh
BENERAE T EL B 416,424 609,012
Electricity Consumption Intensity kWh Density (kWh/Sales

Volume in HKD'00O)

BHHFERE BE (TRE FTHETKE) 75.41 71.70
Water 7K
The cinema cities and office operations of the Group require ZAEBEFEENETHRERLAZTEE L FER

the use of water resources. All the drinking water and toilet
flushing water of the Group are provided by municipal water
supplies. There are no issues related to sourcing water. The
major kind of wastewater generated by the Group is domestic
sewage, which will be directly discharged to local drainage
system. Meanwhile, the Group has put effort to reduce the
water consumption, such as posting labels to remind and
encourage employees to reduce water usage, and always
turning off the faucet and reporting any water leakage. During
the cleaning of office, the cleaning workers are strictly
controlled for using of water and frequency of cleaning. The
total water consumption during the Reporting Period increased
by 31.4% as compared to the previous year. The main reason
for the increase in water consumption is due to the increase in
the number of disinfection and cleaning water during the peak
of COVID-19 epidemic. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic causing
the fluctuation of previous data collection, we are not able to
set a group-level water conservation target. We will consider
setting a group-level water conservation target when the data
collection and reporting scope become stable in the future.

RKER - S EFTARAK KR RIZKGRE T K
oK FESREBUE M KR LY BRI E - A& H
TEIREERERFK ZERSKEEERH
ABHPIKERG - Rl AEEB RS AKE
INSRAG IR EIATRIE M e B B B AR A0 AR R 2
KRR BRERKERL EREENBRBIE
REEBBIENBERABNAKE B RA
K- REFENNEFKEREFIZN3.4%"
FKEBEMNIBZRAERERERE HBSR
BB RIKIEINFTE - AR R B EBUEE BUR
RELREEH RMABERIEEEENEKE
B ARKBEBERERREREZFIZTH T
KE BRI EEBHAEIKER

Resource consumption BIRBFE
Unit FY2023 Fy2022
B —Eo=ME T _BF
Water Consumption m?3
AkE 7K 1,830 1,393
Water Consumption Intensity m3/Sales Volume in HKD'OOO
AkE%E MRS FRETRE 0.33 0.186
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group focuses on business impact on the environment and
natural resources and pursues the best practice with the
environmental protection. In addition to complying with relevant
environmental laws and regulations and international standards
to properly preserve the natural environment, the Group has
integrated the concept of environmental protection and natural
resources conservation into its internal management and daily
operations with the aim of achieving environmental
sustainability.

The Group is committed to providing a complete picture of
environmental initiatives. \We strive to build an eco-conscious
culture that ingrains positive lifestyle and habits among
employees. \We encourage the use of public transportation. Our
event management is also an avenue by which we seek to
integrate sustainability principles. Events are usually held on-site
and avoid the use of disposal utensils.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

As part of the community, we do not live aside of the impact of
climate change. The Group manages the issue with respect to
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), which outlines four components:
Governance, Strategy, Risk Management and Metrics and
Targets.

Our governance is mainly driven by the Board, who sets out a
clear strategy: to achieve eco-efficiency, the delivery of
satisfactory goods and services while reducing environmental
impacts and resource intensity, according to the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development. This pushes us
to consider the climate when making business decisions.

The Group is principally engaged in film production, licensing
and derivatives, crossover marketing and provision of interactive
contents and cinema investment and management. Given the
operation model of the Group, we consider there is no climate-
related issues that could have material impact on the Group.
Nevertheless, we continue to pay close attention to the possible
impact of climate change on our business, strategy and
financial performance, and fully support global climate-related
actions.
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
Aspect B1: Employment

The Group considers employees as the most valuable wealth
and resources and believes that they are propellent of
corporate growth. Therefore, the Group is committed to
providing an equal, harmonious and diversified working
environment to employees in order to attract and retain
suitable talents in the competitive labor market and for the
purpose of maintaining its competitiveness in the industry.

Our employment management palicies cover resources
planning, performance evaluation, training, compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination.

The Group firmly believes that its employees are the most
valuable assets of an enterprise and one of the most important
factors for the sustainable development and success of the
Group. The Group strictly complies with all employment-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Labor
Contract Law of the PRC [ (R EARXMEI L E & RIE) ), the
Labor Law of the PRC ( (R ZEAREXFMELE %) ), the
Regulations on Paid Annual Leave for Employees ( (B T #% &
R 1&%1) ), the Law on the Protection of Rights and Interests
of Women [ {7 & #251%[&5%) ), Provisions of the State Council
on Working Hours of Workers and Staff ( <275k @A B T T{E
FFE A48 7E) ), the Law on the Protection of Disabled Persons
( (= ARFE5%) ) and the Social Insurance Law of the PRC
((PEAREMBILSRERIZE) ).
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The Group has adopted the Employee Handbook (& T31f) to
regulate the workflow of recruiting, induction and training,
employee transfers, dismissals and promations. the Employee
Handbook is aligned with the local labor laws of Mainland China
and Hong Kong and includes key corporate policies. Newly
recruited employees are provided with a softcopy of the
Employee Handbook which they are required to review during
on-boarding to familiarize themselves with the Group’s
operations and employment and labor practices. In the event of
changes to local labor laws, the Group will update the handbook
and issue the revised copy with all employees.

The Group attaches great importance to talent acquisition, and
we recognize that the success of an enterprise is inseparable
from its employees at all levels. In FY2023, we looked for
passionate people through a variety of recruitment channels
including internal referral, campus recruitment, social media
recruitment, online recruitment, talent market and head
hunters to strengthen our workforce. The Group aims to
provide employees with a supportive workplace built with a
culture of respect and dignity that enables employees to provide
excellent service to customers.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, to the best of our
directors’ knowledge, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance or breach of relevant laws and regulations
regarding employment.
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 52 employees. The data
of Group’s number of employees and turnover by type in the

Reporting Period are listed as below:

RZE_=F=ZA=+—H AEEB2%E
B HMEFEAAEBIZEHRE»NEEAZKE
B ERREFEE AT

FY2023
—EC-=HE
Total Workforce Total
SRR 2 R 52
By Employment Type Full time
RIERERZ D 7 38
Part time
B 14
By Gender Male
MBI 5 S 23
Female
gy 29
By Age Group 30 or below
RERARZD 30 AT 10
31-40
315 E405% 13
41-50
415 2 505% 19
51-60
515 £605% 6
Above B0
B05% A = 4q
By Employee Category Management
RESERNZ D BIEE 20
General staff
EBET 32
By Geographical Regions Mainland China
R 12 (& 15 8 A A 39
Hong Kong
e 13
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Employee Turnover: @

EEAKE @

Number of Employees

EEAY
Total Overall number (Turnover rate)
rmer BREREAB(ORKLE) 8 (15.4%)
By Gender Male (Turnover rate)
=1 R E 5 SUAH(BHRELE) 3 (13.0%)
Female (Turnover rate)
M (R KE) 5 (17.2%)
By Age Group 30 or below (Turnover rate)
RERARE D 30pRK AT AB (fR K X) 1 (10.0%)
31-40 (Turnover rate)
31240 A B (kL&) 0 (0.0%)
41-50 (Turnover rate)
AN ESORAH ORKLE) 0 (0.0%)
51-60 (Turnover rate)
515 260 A (KL H) 5 (83.3%)
Above 60 (Turnover rate)
BOmR A EABL (FRK L 2) 2 (50.0%)
By Geographical Regions Mainland China (Turnover rate)
R 7P [ 15 8 RE A A ORKEE) 8 (20.5%)
Hong Kong (Turnover rate)
BEEANBORKLX) 0 (0.0%)

(2) The employee turnover rate is calculated by the total number of
employees that left in FY2023 divided by the total number of
employees under respective categories as of the end of FY2023.

Employment and employee welfare:

Employees are one of the Group’'s most valued assets and the
cornerstone of its corporate growth. We note that employees
should be respected and we commit to provide employees with
an ideal working environment. The Group’s “Employee
Handbook” clearly stipulates policies on remuneration,
recruitment and dismissal, promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, and other rights and benefits.
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Salary, benefits and retirement:

We offer our employees competitive remuneration based on
their scope of work, job responsibilities and individual
performance, and reward employee performance that
contributes to the Group’s success. In addition to basic salary,
employees are entitled to benefits including social and medical
insurance in Mainland China, medical insurance in Hong Kong,
and family friendly policies such as marriage leave, maternity
and paternity leave, compassionate leave and funeral leave.

The Group also offers overtime pay and all perquisites and
allowances required by the government. Overtime requests are
made in advance, and eligible requests are supported with
benefits such as transportation allowance, compensated leave
and overtime pay. The Group participates in retirement benefit
schemes in Mainland China and Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying employees.

Equal opportunity and non-discrimination:

Equal opportunity and non-discrimination practices underscore
the culture we seek to promote in our offices’ spaces. The
Group welcomes candidates from different backgrounds and
adheres to the Codes of Conduct required by business partners
by:

° Ensuring there is no discrimination directly or indirectly, in
employment decisions, including hiring, promotion,
dismissal, wages and access to benefits on ground of
race, color, sex, language, religion, political or other
opinion, age, national, social or ethnic origin, property,
sexual orientation, birth health status, trade union
membership, mental or physical disability, or other status
must not be engaged in or supported;

° Guaranteeing that no employees are subjected to
mandatory health tests that have no relevance to the job
function; and

° Providing equal benefits and opportunities to vulnerable
groups, such as migrant workers, which may be subject
to less pratection by national law as national workers.
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Aspect B2: Workplace Health and Safety

Minimizing work-related accidents and providing a safe and
secure working environment for all employees are of paramount
importance to the Group. The safeguard for employees’ health
and safety is one of the most important parts of the Group’s
corporate control management. The Group is committed to
formulating and implementing efficient safety and health rules
that focus not only on accident prevention, but also on
improving employee efficiency and morale, requiring all
employees to follow workplace safety rules, use necessary
safety equipment and report actual or potential safety hazards.

The Group strictly abides by the labor laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong, including but not limited to  {
#= AR A MEILEE) (Labor Law of the PRC), <&t A R A ME
B %5 05565%) (Law of the PRC on Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases), (% A R £ F1EH F5%) (Fire Control
Law of the PRC), <& % % 2 & & FE {%) (Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance), (& & & E&H]) (Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong), and other laws and regulations.

Our administration department regularly circulates updated
information relating to health and safety practices, and places
posters in common areas to remind our staff.

The Group takes occupational health and safety seriously and
will not tolerate the flagrant disregard of safety protocols.
Verbal warnings are issued in the event that an employee
conducts unsafe working practices that pose a danger to
themselves or others. For serious violations, disciplinary action
may be taken.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 brought challenges to both the
Group’s operations and customers. As such, the Group
implemented a number of measures to safeguard the health of
customers and employees. The Group operated strictly in
accordance with the crowd control and social distancing rules
issued by respective local governments, and proactively
implement additional disinfection steps to maintain a safe and
hygienic environment. Working from home was allowed during
the peak of pandemic in order to lower the chance of infection.
Employees are required to wear surgical masks and are
reminded to observe a high standard of hygiene. Alcohol-based
hand sanitizers were provided in the office as pandemic
precaution measure.
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The Group have one serious work-related injuries and 70 lost
days due to work injury during the Reporting Period. The work-
related injury involved a traffic accident when the employee
went to work and did not involve the safety of the working
environment. There was no record of work-related fatality in the
past three reporting years.

AEERNBEHRALBLITEETLERAT
BRRIEEH/OK ZZITEHBSPRET LN
REAZBRINERL TS RIERRELRE 0
= EERFELRERT T HNLH-

Unit FY2023 Fya2022 Fy2021
B SBoCEME T _MF T MF
Number of work-related fatalities Number
ETEREMILTH AR AE 0 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities
HTER R ML T By L 3 % 0 0 0
Number of work injury Number
B TERR T X IS8 A N 1 0 0
Lost days due to work injury Days
ETEELXIERS HE 70 0 0

Aspect B3: Development and Training

Bingo firmly believes that fostering and retaining talent is a core
part of ensuring corporate development and strengthening its
competitiveness. As of 31 March 2023, the Group has a total
of 52 employees (31 March 2022: 44 employees). The Group
has prepared its management system on staff training ( (& T
BHIIEESE) ), which formed the basis of planning and
implementation of training system. The Group has provided
various types of targeted training to its staff based on the
actual needs of different departments and functions, and
developed personalized training development programs for key
positions, aiming to motivate employees to develop their
potential. The Group has also encouraged staff to engage in
external programs, such as online courses for continuous
professional development and skill set enhancement.
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Bingo offers induction orientation and appropriate assistance
for every newly-joined staff member. The induction orientation
mainly introduces the Group, its corporate culture, rules and
regulations and code of conduct, etc., which enables staff to fit
into the corporate culture of the Group and further understand
their working environment and responsibility. The Group is
committed to establishing a platform for career development
for its staff and to providing on-job internal training relating to
professional skills, general management skills, career
development and mentality. Also, staff are provided with the
opportunity to attend business training organized by external
training organizations. Based on its business development
requirements, the Group will consider to cooperate with
relevant training organizations or institutions engaged in
providing training for certain management or technical
personnel in key positions.

Training Hours Completed of Employees during the Reporting
Period®

Total (Hours)

ks AT — 3 8 TRHEARBE MEE #H8)
ABBINETIEREAEEGT SEXXE-
REFERTARBFAT EETERAFRAE
AREBCEX URHTHERREBE AR
ANBER AEBB N RETRIEBERR Y

FREERRE BATERE BEERAL
REDHMNEBRAEIN BT REHS2 M0

HEJIERpnmEE) - - AEASENES
BRBE AKBEBEEAERAEEIIHE S
REEHFN BB ETERBHENE R
flr A BIRHEETI -

RER & F B 8 B 5o A 15 BB 29

Average Training Hours
Per Employee (Hours)

At (NEF) BREEFHRIEH (M)
Number of Training Hours
=3 2,123 40.8
By Gender Male
=M RIEI D S 1,226 53.3
Female
4 897 30.9
By Employee Category Management
RETERMNE D EIRE 725 36.3
General employees
ETmET 1,398 43.7
(3) The average training hours per employee is calculated by the total ~ (3) T H&IEESMHFHE ||HT§5<EM2C)23§7T¢E’] =l
number of training hours in FY2023 divided by the total number HART U R LA B 2202381 F IR 4H FE FH Bl BV 18 & 21
of employees under respective category as of the end of FY2023. -
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Unit FY2023
B —ER=HEF
Percentage of employees trained by gender
RUEMNBDOXINETADL
Male
S % 95.7
Female
g % 89.7
Percentage of employees trained by employee category
REBEMNIIPORINETIADL
Management
EIEE % 80.0
General employees
EWET % 100.0

To incentivize our employees, reward excellence and enhance
staff morale, a transparent and fair appraisal system is
operated by our remuneration committee and the Group’s
management. Carried out annually, the employee performance
evaluation process provides the basis upon which management
can decide on promotion of staff and salary revisions.
Performance management is a complete system as well as an
ongoing process, which includes the following key phases:

AHEBET HBHLXRFAMEABTI LR #
MEEERAEEEREBANTRERENRF
FESE - BEERAEREEFET X B
EREBETEIE T RFHARRHER -EX
EERRTENE  TEFERE BFETIE

PR

Year-end Performance Assessment: Target Setting:
FRAERREIE - REBR :
L]

Appraisal of targets and ©
performance

BB RERNTE

Performance recognition

ERERA

Based on operational objectives
EREERR

Personal Development Settings:
BABREN :

Ongoing Coaching and Feedback: O
FHEIEERRE
* Management support Q
EEERE
Promaotion of abilities and skills

RFABE I REEE

Management support

EEEXE

Identify strengths and weaknesses
BB REZE

Confirm development plan
R R

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Aspect B4: Labor Standards

We are in strict compliance with the Labor Law of the PRC
((hEARFELME A E L) ), the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC ((HPEARAXMELEH AR ZE) ), the Employment
Promotion Law of the PRC ( (ff & AR KX AME R X ei#)%) ), the
Social Insurance Law of the PRC ( (% A R H B+ € R B
7£) ), the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57, Laws of Hong
Kong), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608, Laws of
Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485, Laws of Hong Kong), and other internal paolicies
to ensure compliance with the principles of openness, fairness
and impartiality in terms of personnel recruitment, employment,
training, and assessment.

Moreover, we prohibit any form of forced, bonded or
compulsory labor, human trafficking and other kinds of slavery
and servitude. Any form of discrimination, harassment or
bullying is not tolerated. We extend our commitment to
suppliers by requiring all business partners to take measures
to avoid and eliminate any form of forced, bonded or
compulsory labor, or human trafficking. The rights and
freedoms of every individual is protected as no worker is asked
to surrender identification documents nor lodge deposits as a
condition of employment. Cases of child labor in our businesses
are averted by conducting age verification of all job applicants.

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with the
Employment Ordinance, Employment of Children Regulations
and other applicable laws and regulations relating to preventing
child or forced labor on the Group during the Reporting Period.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or
sanctions had been reported during the Reporting Period.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Cinema Cities select suppliers in accordance with the
established “Supplier Qualification Requirements and Product
Procurement Standards” ( (tERHEE ERK L EMKBIZE) )
and requires them to provide legal and effective business
qualification certificates or industry entry certificates. The
suppliers of Cinema Cities are cinema companies approved by
the National Radio and Television Administration. Cinema Cities
show films which comply with regulations according to national
regulations.

For suppliers supplying food products or food raw materials,
the Group requires the relevant suppliers to provide proof of
inspection issued by a state authority or a third-party testing
organization. If the products relate to the brand agencies, the
suppliers must provide the authorized agent certificate issued
by the original brand manufacturers. In addition to the quality of
the products provided by the suppliers, the Group will consider
extending the procurement criteria to its environmental and
social performance. During the Reporting Period, the Group
partnered with a total of 8 suppliers which all located in
Mainland China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
potential negative impacts on business ethics, environmental
protection, human rights and labor practices, nor any non-
compliance incident caused by suppliers.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Product Quality and Safety

Health and Safety are the two crucial factors of the Group's
products and services. All employees are abided by the “Cinema
Service and Product System” ((¥RBRELERFIE) ),
ensuring that the product quality complies with the national and
regional standards. The Group's employees are also responsible
for maintaining public order, food safety and environment
sanitation. The “Bingo Cinema City Operations Manual” ( {tt &
B iE % FM) ) also stipulates that the Operation
Department of Cinema Cities should inspect fire distinguishers,
fire hose reels, emergency lights and other fire control
equipment regularly. Such equipment should also be maintained
on schedule. The results of inspection were all registered in the
“Bingo Cinema City Management Log” ( (Lt EFMEIR B ) ).

BSHHE : HE#HERE

EXHEBRREEN(HERELERNERK
BRR) BEREHARER TEREEERES AR
BYREEEERRAUITREAERT - B
FRHERAERERERERRIMNRER
Al BEEWIKIRBIZOEMER  BRARNER -

HREHRRVKGBIBRY RN OHER K&
EEREARHEEHERABRBAXE =R
AMBE OB SRER - B BER S &2
A R IR - B 7 0 78 B2 o TR o R AR 7 3 HH
EREAREZEH - RTEZEHERREHNERRE
S REEEERIEHRBEEESERERY S
KA -RBEFERN AKERAHABRHEER
B 2EMHL NP EAM -

RBEFER ARERBRTMECHHEE
B RERE ABRBIGFENEEEZE T
AREBRHEBEKERNTEROFT-

B6LH : EmEM

ERBEERLZE

BEEZZ2IAKREERMRBHMIEAREE
Z-MAREVET(EERBEERDE) -
BREMEBETABARLIMREE - AEEHES
NEBEREAAKEF RALXEMREFHE (L
SEFZWELTM) TRE EFWELHFIE
EH R E IR N 2R OB WREE - R R EAERD
R LBRBENEZEETEE - REER
E2HMEHER (LEEEXREEAT) P

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

W



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BE - ERELRS

To ensure the supply of highest quality services to customers,
the Group has set up feedback and complaints procedures for
its customers. The Group values the opinions and feedbacks of
each customer, and shall continue to improve the quality of
services supplied by us in accordance to such feedbacks.

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, we are strictly
adhering to the social distancing guidelines and rules of the
government authorities in the operating regions. Also, we
establish guidelines and measures for frontline staff to keep
cinema cities clean and safe.

° Control the number of tickets to be sold and seats to be
occupied of each house for films;

° Eating and drinking is not allowed inside the cinema cities;
o Provide disinfecting hand rub in the cinema cities;

° Measure customers’ body temperature prior to admission
of the cinema cities;

° Disinfect the frequent touched areas, such as counter
desk, door handles; and

° The entire auditorium will be disinfected before the start
of each show.

° Suspend the operation of cinema cities temporarily in
accordance with local government regulations.

The Group strictly comply with the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( (R ZE AR KEMBE ZEEEE) ), the
Regulations on the Administration of Movies of the People’s
Republic of China [ (F#EARZMBE T E LKA ), the Film
Industry Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {#
FEARANMBE ST EE@E¥EE) ) and other national laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not transgress
against any laws and regulations in terms of health and safety
to its services and products. There were no recalls concerning
the provision and use of the Group’s products that have a
significant impact on our operations and no recall due to safety
and health reasons.
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Personal data privacy protection and data protection policies

The Group is committed to protect privacy and confidentiality of
the collected personal data. The Group has established internal
policies on handling personal data recorded from our
employees, customers and other business partners. \We collect
data only in a lawful and fair way, for directly related purposes
of which the data subject is clearly notified. Providing related
personnel with information security training, the personal data
inventory is secured to prevent any unauthorized or accidental
access. We ensure the data is accurate and not kept longer
than necessary and the period stipulated by respective laws.
We utilize technology to aid the safeguarding of the personal
data inventory, such as anti-virus software and firewalls,
network diagnostic tools and data encryption. Mechanisms are
also in place that ensure any infringement of personal data
privacy protection rights are dealt with in a timely manner.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material non-
compliance or violation in intellectual property and privacy.

Ethical operating practices

The Group places great value in conducting all aspects of our
businesses with integrity and honest values. From protection
intellectual property to ethical marketing communication, we
ensure all patent of movie and management are compliant to
legal standards and procedures, as well as prevent the
infringement of other intellectual property rights. Our robust
management approaches ensure even the most trivial aspects
are not overlooked.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has encountered no
incident of non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to intellectual property and ethical marketing
communication at all operating regions.
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Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

To embrace business integrity for sustainable operations, the
Group promotes fairness and integrity by deterring unethical
business practices, including bribery, fraud, corruption,
extortion and money laundering. The Group also provides
induction training and regular updates to all new directors and
employees, the training covers areas including but not limited
to, anti-corruption laws and regulations and the company’s
requirements in relation thereto, as well as the code of ethics
that all directors and employees must comply with. The code of
ethics in the Employee Handbook emphasizes the importance of
abiding by statutory laws and regulations to staff and also
states clearly with the responsibility for violations. \We will make
our best effort to ensure employees understand the code of
ethics and make it a part of daily business activities in order to
create a positive corporate culture placing integrity and honesty
on a high priority.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering,
including but not limited to the Company Law of the PRC [ (&
#=ARLMBEAFE) ), the Anti-Money Laundering Law [ (&%
#5%) ), the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC [ (FFEAR
HME RIS F %) ), the Basic Standards for Internal
Control of Enterprise ( (AN EBEHIE AR #) ) and the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery ( B8R %25 1E
REBRKITANEITHE) ), Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
( <BrLEEBEE1541) ) and other laws and regulations.

To prevent fraud, the Group has set up the Anti-Fraud System
( (REEESE) ), which aims to enhance the Group’s internal
control and corporate governance in this area. The Anti-Fraud
System explicitly provides guidelines and regulations on
professional conducts to the directors of the Group, senior and
middle management employees as well as ordinary employees.
With the Anti-Fraud System, the Group has created an honest
and diligent atmosphere, which prevents behaviors that are
prejudicial to the interests of the Group and its shareholders.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had not violated any
laws or regulations in relation to corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering and were also no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees known to the Group.

Aspect B8: Community Investment

As the market places focus more on corporate behaviors and
social responsibilities, the pursuit of maximizing financial returns
to reward shareholders is no longer the only goal of corporate
management. The Group pays close attention to its connections
with the community where it operates and is well aware of the
importance of different stakeholders’ expectations. The Group
firmly believes that balancing the interests between
shareholders and other stakeholders is the only way to achieve
the long-term business development in a stable and healthy
manner.

Bingo will formulate the definite policies in relation to social
investments, and shall incorporate such corporate social
responsibilities and social care projects into the schedules of
each department. The Group is studying the possibility of
establishing the specialized committee to plan and promote
such activities in relation to the sustainable development of
communities based on its own prospect and objective in
respect of the Group’s sustainable future.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants
B AR 3HER F TR R A
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 89 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group has incurred losses
for a number of years. The Group has incurred a net loss of
HK$8,377,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
sustained capital deficiency of HK$2,120,000 at 31 March
2023. These events or conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

In addition to the matters described in the Material Uncertainty
Related to Going Concern section, we have determined the
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

How the matter
Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

REEXER

MREFELEREHANERTREEE —EM
SN HPEBEE TESEARMREFT KA
BORRESZSEE

MREBEZFHEEREBERMANEXZHE RAER
PG BBRRCBERRRERZFH %F
ARERMEZEECGAMBRERLHARR
RETREN R T SHZEZTREREBE
Ho

Revenue from cinema investment
and management business

Refer to Notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements

We identified revenue recognised QOur procedures in relation to
from cinema investment and revenue from cinema investment
management business as a key and management business
audit matter as revenue recognised included:

is guantitatively significant to the

consolidated statement of profit oo — Obtaining an understanding
loss. of the revenue process of
the cinema investment and
Revenue from box office takings is management business;
recognised when the movie is
broadcasted and revenue from — Understanding the key
advertising is recognised over the controls over the recognition
contract terms. The accounting of revenue from cinema
policy for revenue recognition is investment and management
disclosed in Note 4(i) to the business; and

consolidated financial statements.

The Group recognised revenue of — Performing test of details,
approximately HK$5,522,000 from on sample basis, by
cinema investment and management comparing the details and
business for the year ended 31 amounts shown on the
March 2023. underlying documentation,

including the journal
vouchers, box office takings
report and contracts for
advertising.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. \We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal contral.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consoclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Chun Sing

Practising Certificate number PO6998

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EC=F =
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
" aF FET FET
Revenue g % 7,8 5,522 8,494
Cost of sales and services HE MRS A (2,306) (3,643)
Gross profit EF 3,216 4,851
Other revenue and other net income H b U 2 K B A F WA g 1,518 2,108
Selling and marketing expenses $HE K& HA X (222) (98]
Administrative expenses THHRX (13,705) (15,797)
Impairment of property, plant and M - BB LR ERE
equipment 17 - (209)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 18 = (1,714)
Gain on lease madification HEENR 2z W 2,718 -
Share-based payments VARR 17 AR B0 2 1<% 31,33 - (1,219)
Share of result of an associate Db —EEE A RIELE (20) 8
Finance costs & AR 10 (1,882) (2,601)
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE 11 (8,377) (14,671)
Taxation sl 14 = -
Loss for the year AREEFEE (8,377) (14,671)
Loss attributable to: EREE:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ Z SN (9,030) (13,779)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R i = 653 (892)
(8,377) (14,671)
HK cents HK cents
B Rl
Loss per share BRER 16
Basic and diluted HAN#E (8.80) (14.77)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReRfEEmka®

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
Loss for the year AEEFIER (8,377) (14,671
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hib2mEmWB A/ (FE)
Item that may be reclassified HEn s HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEREFCERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising during — ANFEEA 2 E K Z5
the year 810 (339)
— Release of translation reserve upon — & KB R 7] B R WUE 5 R
disposal of subsidiaries - 37
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for AFEEMm2EUW A / (EE)
the year, net of tax MR TR IR 810 (298)
Total comprehensive loss rEELEEEARE
for the year (7,567) (14,969)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EHEEMEZEBRA/ (EE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIET ZSDN 749 (279]
Non-contralling interests SEVERRAE = 61 (19)
810 (298)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEE2EBA/ (EE) B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N (8,281) (14,058)
Non-controlling interests FEVEAR A 714 (911)
(7,567) (14,969)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2023
RZFEZ=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—E=F —F-—
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
ik FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz WE MEE 17 126 5
Right-of-use assets CRREE 18 - -
Interests in an associate A — 5 A R R 20 16 570
Rental deposits HER® 22 343 547
485 1,122
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade receivables JE s BR 3K 21 135 67
Other receivables, deposits and Hib fE IR e RTER
prepayments FRIE 22 547 6,365
Loan to an associate ) — B A AR EER 20 - 16,029
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEY 23 22,993 11,824
23,675 34,285
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade payables JESHBR K 24 142 72
Other payables and accruals Hth FE A 5018 R JEET R IE 25 3,748 3,717
Contract liabilities S ON=Kr 26 7,423 8,266
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 556 2,689
11,869 14,744
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 11,806 19,541
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABAE
LIABILITIES 12,291 20,663

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2023
RZFEZ=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
—EBC-=HF —T-Z
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
it 5 THET FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 28 13,146 11,501
Lease liabilities HEERE 27 1,265 4,515
14,411 16,016
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BB /EEFE (2,120) 4,647
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRFE
Share capital & 29 10,265 10,265
Reserves G (12,745) (4,464)
(2,480) 5,801
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M 34 360 (1,154)
TOTAL (CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/EQUITY (EXRE#4) /EREE (2,120) 4,647
The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 211 TJ|EFHAFBIBEEFRNMBE 28 BEHREE RN
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —Z-=4#xHA=+x EE It R

directors on 26 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHOW Man Ki Kelly

5heg ]
DIRECTGR
EE
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CHOW Nga Chee Alice
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DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GeERE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

Equity Share Attributable
component Share award to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed of convertible options scheme  Exchange Accumulated of the  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES R %R AR
Re  ROEE  B4BB 0 BERS BRERE  HUEE  EARE  RHEE  EEARE  FERER &zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TER AL TEL TR TR TEL TEL TR TAL TEL
At 31 March 2021 i —d
=A=1+-H 8,554 420,810 132,237 40 7,563 1,687 (2,081) (599,411 9,399 (578) 8,821
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (13,779)  (13,779) (892)  (14,671)
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEH2E
for the year BE
— Exchange differences —BEEEY
anising on translation EXZER - - - - - - (316) - (316) (19) (339)
— Release of translation — HEMERR
reserve upon disposal BEREL
of subsidiaries Bl - - - - - - 37 - 37 - 37
Total comprehensive loss A5 E2EFE
for the year &% - - - - - - (279) (13,779) (14,058) 911 (14,969)
Issue of convertible bonds &7 R ER - - - 8,743 - - - - 8,743 - 8,743
Extinguishment of convertible 5 (£ AT AR &%
bonds - - - [40) - - - (4,923) (4,983 - (4,983)
Issue of shares on placement R A EREATHR 1,711 3,750 - - - - - - 5,461 - 5461
Issue of share options BiTERE - - - - 1,168 - - - 1,168 - 1,168
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - (5,943) - - 5,943 - - -
Disposal of subsidiary HEMERR - - - - - - - - - 335 335
Equity settled share award ~ WEZEE 2R
arrangement REIZH - - - - - 51 - - 51 - 51
At 31 March 2022 e S
=R=t-H 10,265 424,560 132,237 8,743 2,788 1,738 (2,360) (572,170 5,801 (1,154) 4,647
Loss for the year TEEER = = - - - - - (9,030) (9,030 653 (8,377)
Other comprehensive income A4 E £ 2
for the year WA
— Exchange differences —hEEEZ
anising on translation EREE = - - - - - 749 - 749 61 810
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2EER
for the year &5 - - - - - - 749 (9,030) (8,281) 714 (7,567)
Cancellation of awarded
shares - - - - - (1,738) - 1,738 - - -
Capital contribution from ~ FEfE R 2
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 800 800
At 31 March 2023 RZBZZF
=A=1+-A 10,265 424560 132,237 8,743 2,788 - (1,611)  (579,462) (2,480) 360 (2,120)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HeleRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E_-_=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation AT ET 18 (8,377) (14,671)
Adjustments for: IR EELA T & I8
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss RIBE R Z B E KA 1,882 2,601
Interest income B U A (23) (199)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1%  B&E MR EITE 8 362
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE - 784
Impairment of property, mE BB KREBZRE
plant and equipment - 209
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE - 1,714
Exchange loss/(gain) on loan to an associate  M—AEEQARFRELERZ
FE 5B 1R (s 1,655 (749)
Share of result of an associate oih— A E QAR EE 20 (8)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z W = (822)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BFE R&REH 2 WS
equipment - (16)
Share-based payments VAR 7 A B8 2 R 5R - 1,219
Rent concession HeE=E (896) (123)
Gain on lease termination MEK Iz e = (170)
Gain on lease modification HEER 2 Wz (2,718) -
Operating cash flows before working capital LEESEEFA 2
changes KEEGRE (8,449) (9,869)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEUSBR ZX (28 00) sk > (73) 114
Decrease/(Increase) in other receivables, EMEREE e &
deposits and prepayments A RIER D, () 5,930 (217)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables FEABREE A0, () 76 (137)
Increase in deposits received, other payables B Uti% 4 - H b e 7B &
and accruals JEFT FUIBIE AN 157 1,640
Decrease in contract liabilities aHEERD (236) (63)
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS EEMARS (2,595) (8,532)
Interest received 2 E 23 17
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEffACEESEE (2,572) (8,515)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HeleRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

2023 2022
—EC=F B F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt st FER FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHZ2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and BEEWE WERE&EE
equipment (130) (10)
Proceed from disposal of property, plant &% BE & RE 2
and equipment Fri5 3018 — 36
Cash outflow for disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR ZEEHH - (262)
Repayment from/(Advance to) B (B F—EH#HE
an associate NS 534 (4)
Repayment received for loan to Fm—fEEE QA REER
an associate B HER 14,374 3,651
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEMBZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REeFHE 14,778 3,411
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHz2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (1,329) (3.075)
Interest paid BAFE (237) (350)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JFE{ERE AT &
interests 800 -
Net proceeds from placing & 2 TS RIEFHE - 5,461
Transaction cost for issue convertible BATAIMRE S 2
bonds R 5 KA = (722)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BEEE (FTA) Ff
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEFEE (766) 1,314
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBESSEWEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) 11,440 (3,790)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHIzREeRESZEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 11,824 15,303
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4MNE[E R & &) 7 §/ £ (271) 311
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRESZEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 23 22,993 11,824

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ﬁ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HeERaiE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non- cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

METEDAMEEARZHIE

mATRIFRE

TRAVNAEEREZDMELABZES (B
) -BMEIBIELRET
ReRnBeK(IAARKAEREFRE)RNAKH
REREREXRTIEABELTINELRS

Group’s consalidated statement of cash flows as cash flows REZA&fE-
from financing activities.
Total liabilities
Convertible Lease from financing
bonds liabilities activities
RETBREE
TRRES HESE BEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMH—H 13,752 9,301 23,053
Financing cash flow MERERE - (3,425]) (3,423)
Interest expenses FEFX 2,251 350 2,601
Issue of convertible bonds BT RAE 11,438 - 11,438
Extinguishment of convertible bonds & {& 7] # f% (& % (15,940) - (15,940)
New leases entered FIMHTEE - 1,557 1,557
Rent concession HeEHR - (123) (123)
Lease termination HELRIE - (170) (170)
Disposal of subsidiary HE B A A - (608) (608)
Exchange adjustments i 5 S B - 322 322
At 31 March 2022 and RZE_—F=ZA=+—8K
1 April 2022 “E-—FA—H 11,501 7,204 18,705
Financing cash flow BERESRE - (1,566) (1,566)
Interest expenses FMERXZ 1,645 237 1,882
Rent concession Herm=R - (896) (896)
Lease modification HEBH - (2,718) (2,718)
Exchange adjustments I - (440) (440)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=H=+—H 13,146 1,821 14,967

ANNUAL REPORT ik

2022/23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (*HK$"), which is also the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements. The functional
currency of the subsidiaries of the Company mainly
includes Renminbi ("RMB”) and HKS$. All values are
rounded to nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
202, 2/F., Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider the Company’s ultimate holding company to be
Beglobal Investments Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO”).

LFEH

e fEERERAR ([RARF]) AR
EHEEMRINERLBRAR EK
NRELHARZABERAFGEM L -

ARFZEELBARERR - ARTE
HBAF Y EEEHRR AP BREN
1134 -

RRBZMEEE/ET(BT]) T A
REMBHRERNEINEE - RNRBMER
AZME BB T ERREARE (ARE])
KRBT -BRRITHRAIN FIEHEZEER
BT

N A) 2 7k 9% F L A1 72 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 7
NAIZEMERFREATEZEEWH RS
B EBEL14-42457 R Erg Eh L2E
202E - ARAEF([EFREB AR
AZERBRERATARREBRZES
Az BREER R Beglobal
Investments Limited °

mREE

ZEGAVBERRNDBEESSHAAS
(IBFesrmmAgl) B —EAES
MERELER ([BBMBREED]) (1t
TR EER Z BRI E A KRS ER -
EF e ER ([E5aER]) hREY
HBIREBSARGTRAMBRE - ZF4R
BB BRRABETESRARINAR
ARIGEM#ESH Em#R A ([GEM i A11)
ZHEBAEEEXREBQAMES ([REE
Bl 2 BEME -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group has incurred losses for number of years and a
net loss of HK$8,377,000 during the year ended 31
March 2023 and as of that date, the Group’s capital
deficiency as of 31 March 2023 amounted to
HK$2,120,000.

In order to improve the Group’s financial position, to
provide liquidity and cashflows and to sustain the Group’s
as a going concern, the management has taken and/or
will take the following measures:

() The Group is taking measures to tighten cost
controls over various operating costs and expenses
with the aim to attain profitable and positive cash
flow operation;

(i) The Group will negotiate with substantial
shareholders of the Company to provide additional
sources of financing; and

(i)  The Group will seek for other potential business to
generate positive cash flow.

The directors of the Company considered that the Group
will have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financing requirement.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company considered that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

BREE

RRBEGETHFREN ERNAEED &
BZFHEABRBINEEZE-_E-_=F=A
=+ —HIEFE5E1EF58,377,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after
1 April 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial position and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

FEREETERMEEEEN

a)

RAFERBERNEBTEEEY
B EER

REFEN RNEBCRERGEEH
BREBRERHELSFMAE
BHAER -—_ZE-_—FEMA—AK
ZERAENFERBESERZ T
HEAE T BB B 2R -

EEMBREEN  BRSERNRL
H3% (EFTA)

EARIENSI68 W% BERARAHR

SCHES TRERI M EHE
BEGHEREI7R BRANETANN
SCHES) A

BENBREEN —T-\FE-T=F
(B3T%) FEABMBREEL

MERERE

RAFERAEETREMBRE
EUAHAEERAFERBEFE
M BRR R KRB R LR EHE Y
BHREAMENBEBELESATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Assaociate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(202072

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all these new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

FEEHRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group's equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS S Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of an associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’'s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
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4,

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

c)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loan to an associate and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

U}

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(]

(ii]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collateral held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than S0 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i} Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEEHBE®
d) Financial instruments (Continued) d £®mIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) T EERE (&)
(iv)  Write-off policy (iv]  #a5EE
The Group writes off a financial asset when EBEEHETHFARBARSE
there is information indicating that the B R PR EE - B3 AR B R U B R
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and R AT RE R (PN ¥ F 5 #0F
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for B AWERF St U
example, when the counterparty has been ERms BB BiER
placed under liquidation or has entered into —F(UAREELEERE))
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade AEEGHESREE-

receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject KERZEZEBEREZ THEHERE
to enforcement activities under the Group’s MT-EMEzEmEER B
recovery procedures, taking into account legal MARAEFBREIRFT TEE
advice where appropriate. A write-off 58 I ER 1T o MUSH A A AR LE 1B R
constitutes a derecognition event. Any EHoHEWKEZ ERMKIER
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit BaRER -
or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (v] GFrEREREAHEFEEIE
The measurement of ECL is a function of the EHEEEBZETENE
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the K EBENEBEE(AENEKRE
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and B2EE) RERERR 2 HE-
the exposure at default. The assessment of the BAOMEREHNEREDRE
probability of default and loss given default is BB R R B RETTRY
based on historical data and forward looking fho-TBEE BB B 2 et R
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an EREREEMESE AT
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that R INHE 2 B L R b T 8
is determined with the respective risks of E-AEBKEEREGEEER
default occurring as the weights. The Group BRBECABERREITIRA
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on AITHE B 77 /A (4 5T B AR 3R /Y
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking BHEEBE TREZHD
into consideration historical credit loss 5 B B AN 380 %5 0 B AT HR A5 Y
experience, adjusted for forward looking ATE M EREITHE -
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

]

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued]

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(v]  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)]

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’'s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, debt component of
convertible bonds and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’'s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the
fair value of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net
of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

When the contractual terms of a convertible
instrument are modified, the revised terms would
result in a substantial modification from the original
terms, after taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of financial liability derecognised and the fair
value of consideration paid or payable, including any
liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result
in such balances no longer meeting the

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-
term (generally with original maturity of three
months or less), highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are
held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments rather than for investment

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented
as short-term borrowings in the consolidated

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
f) Cash and cash equivalents
definition of cash; and
or other purposes.
statement of financial position.
g) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

h)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, madification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the
effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

U}

(i)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
guarters that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEERBE®

h) Leases (Continued) h) #ME&E@E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(i)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
h) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(iv] Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(iv] Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes

in market rental rates are initially measured
using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

]

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-139-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

° the madification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(vi] Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the
practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
madification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarised as
follows:

Cinema investment and management

The Group sells movies tickets, snacks and
accessories to customers both through its own
cinema and through internet sales.

Income from box office takings is recognised when
the movies have been broadcasted and revenue from
selling snacks and accessories is recognised when
control of goods have been transferred to the
customers. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
movies tickets, snacks and accessories.

The advertising income represents the display of
some advertising materials in the area of the cinema
and the airtime right before the start of a movie. The
income of the former is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract terms with a fixed amount.
For the latter, the income is recognised over the
contract terms and the amount of revenue is
correlated to the box office takings of the movie with
the airtime.

The management services income represents
cinema management services provided. The Group
considers the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Cinema investment and management (Continued)

For others, it mainly represents the rental income
for claw machines placed in cinemas, the services
charges for registration of membership and for the
re-issuance of membership cards for those card lost
cases. The income was recognised when the
membership cards were issued to the members.

A contract liability is recognised for the prepayment
made by the customers in the membership cards.
The balance will be recognised as revenue at the
point when movies are broadcasted or when the
customers purchase snacks and accessories.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other revenue and
other net income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss)
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Income tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from
remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

(a) the same taxable entity; or

(b) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

N

m)

n)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC") are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries, annual leaves
and sick leaves) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Share-based payments arrangement
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

(i)  Share options granted to directors and
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n)

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued]

(i

Share options granted to directors and
employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When
share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n)

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued)

(i) Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions with advisors other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets).

Share award scheme

The Group operates a share award scheme for the
purpose of providing incentive for directors,
employees and advisors to achieve performance
goals and aligning their interests directly to the
shareholders of the Company through ownership of
shares of the Company.

The amount to be expensed as share-based
compensation expenses is determined by reference
to the fair value of the awarded shares granted,
taking into account all non-market vesting conditions
associated with the grants. The total expense is
recognised over the relevant vesting periods (or on
the grant date if the shares vest immediately), with a
corresponding credit to the share award scheme
reserve under equity.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over
the vesting periods, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest based on the vesting conditions at
the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative expense recognised in
prior years is recognised in profit or loss in the
current year, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share award scheme reserve.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n)

o)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)

Modification to the terms and conditions of the
share-based payment arrangements

When the terms and conditions of an equity-settled
share-based payment arrangement are modified, the
Group recognises, as a minimum, the services
received measured at the grant date fair value of the
equity instruments granted, unless those equity
instruments do not vest because of failure to satisfy
a vesting condition (other than a market condition)
that was specified at grant date. In addition, if the
Group modifies the vesting conditions (other than a
market condition) in @ manner that is beneficial to
the employees, for example, by reducing the vesting
period, the Group takes the modified vesting
conditions into consideration over the remaining
vesting period.

If the modification reduces the total fair value of the
share-based arrangement, or is not otherwise
beneficial to the employee, the Group continues to
account for the original equity instruments granted
as if that modification had not occurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

4,

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. \When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group, that is HKS,
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset], all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group, as follows:

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are the members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

q)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of the parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

4,

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
r) Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

a)

b)

ANNUAL
2022/23

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
activities. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable and
amortisation lives and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense in future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets

Determining whether property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which they belong to. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Details of impairment assessment of cash-generating
units are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

c)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables,
and loan to an associate

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on aging as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision rates are based
on the Group’'s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
as the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL
individually.

The Group assesses the ECL of loan to an associate
and other receivables individually based on past
repayment record and financial position of the
counterparties.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of loan to
an associate, trade receivables and other
receivables, are disclosed in Notes B6(b](ii), 20, 21
and 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

6. &#MTR

(a) ERTEES

AEBEEHEREENAERNR

the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the EHRZBREENT
end of the reporting period are as follows:
2023 2022
—=E== —_EF_-
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised Z#EK A EN S REE E
cost
Trade receivables JE U AR R 135 67
Loan to an associate m—EBE AR EER - 16,029
Amount due from an associate FE U — AT & R R R 25 559
Financial assets included in other FFAHMERRIBERES
receivables and deposits LEREE 804 1,878
Bank balances and cash SRITHEB MBS 22,993 11,824
23,957 30,357
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities measured at RHEKNAFECEREBE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE S BR R 142 72
Financial liabilities included in other ET KL OB R EE
payables and accruals HEZERBE 3,748 3,717
Convertible bonds AR ES 13,146 11,501
Lease liabilities HEBE 1,821 7,204
18,857 00,494
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
to an associate, bank balances and cash, convertible
bonds and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (“US$")
and RVIB.

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
US$ to HK$ and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &#MIRw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIHEMEEBRMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (] SMERE (&)

The policies to manage foreign currency risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to be effective.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and

AEERBERFUR—EMN
P& OME R B 2 BUR - 358
REBR -

EAi&:‘:H}HE NEREE QA

liabilities which were denominated in currencies MEEEBUIINEE (FERA
(mainly RMB) other than the functional currency RE)GIENEEEEREGEN
of the relevant group companies at the end of FREIET -
the reporting period are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—EC=F B F
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 15,802 446
Loan to an associate m—EBE A FREER - 16,029
Sensitivity analysis BURE ST
The following table indicates the instantaneous TREIRBEHRRAEEE
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and B 85 K Ja| e ) S B FEE 2% 2 B )
accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign EZ EI HIREE (RERMAE EAM
exchange rates to which the Group has DERFIE) AL ER
significant exposure at the end of the reporting %R{QEEET@ (REFEB) EED
period had changed at that date, assuming all BB -t 5 2 R&FB
other risk variables remained constant. In this TRETHHEERE TSR

respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the HK$ and the US$ would be
materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

&€MTH®

(b)

BMERBEEE W RBGR(E)

(Continued)
(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued) SNE R Bz (48)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BEE W (&)
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after (decrease) Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated

rates losses rates losses

Bxtf/ RIELCEE EXr#/ RKigESE

(T¥&)) REFERE (T®) KkZEFE#E

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAET

Renminbi AR 5% (790) 5% (815)
(5%) 790 (5%) 815

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2022.

ERAEAOMERERZIE
MmSAHENEEREN
EEEERRVMRERLER
BREMRRITERLRGE
TCHAR A RIS & -

SRR E 73 T R AR SN B = & &
EEARENAEEAEER
5 HI K B S0 0E L B e &
TR- DM T BIEHREBINE
BHMBHRERSAKEZINNEE
PITEEMER -NMBE_-F
T FHRMNEEET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk due to its bank deposits and loan to an
associate, carrying interest at variable rates
which is disclosed in Notes 23 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements and fair value
interest rate risk due to its convertible bonds
carrying interest at fixed rates which are
disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy and does not use any derivative
instruments to reduce its economic exposure
to the changes in interest rates.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s
convertible bonds bore an imputed interest at
fixed rate and the loan to an associate and the
bank deposits are carrying minimal interest
rates. Management considers the exposure to
the changes in market interest rate should not
be materially enough to cause adverse financial
effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

i} Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’'s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from the ordinary
course of its operations and the loan to an
associate.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits and loan to an associate.
Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &#MIRw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIHEMEEBRMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(i} Credit risk (Continued) i) 1=ERE (&)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to
have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, trade
receivables that are individually significant and
credit impaired have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of the
receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &#MIRw®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIHEMEEBRMNRBERE)
(Continued)

(i} Credit risk (Continued) i) 1=ERE (&)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
debtors in relation to cinema investment and
management operation. The Group’s trade
receivables arise from revenue of these business.
In view of the history of business dealings with
the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these debtors. Management
makes periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
The directors consider the Group’s credit risk of
these receivables to be low.

The credit quality of loan to an associate and
other receivables has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial
position of the counterparties. The directors
are of the opinion that the credit risk of these
debtors was low due to the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them, as
the associate placed the loan in a financial
institution which was high-credit quality as bank
deposit and time deposit and such deposit were
keep rolling during the year ended 31 March
2022. Therefore, the Group assessed
impairment of these balances based on
12-month ECL and expected credit loss rate of
these debtors is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31 March
2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

lii]  Concentration risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and debtor rather than the industry
or country in which the customers and debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers

or debtors.

As at 31 March 2023, other than the
concentration of credit risk on cash at bank,
the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk in trade
and other receivables with exposure spread

over a number of counterparties.

As at 31 March 2022, loan to an associate
amount to HK$16,029,000 was due from an
associate of the Group which was approximately

45% of the Group’s total assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and
lease liabilities and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors (the “Board”) when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. €MITHR®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIHEMEEBRMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] #mEELE (&)
The liquidity policies have been followed by the AEBEEBEBRFUR—BEn
Group since prior years and are considered to ARBESHE WTRBEER
be effective in managing liquidity risks. WEBREBE SRR -
The following table details the remaining TERARBREARRNEEIET
contractual maturities at the end of the FeBBE(REHFUREA
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative EREBHE BREREGHME
financial liabilities, which are based on SOFEANE (AR EHRE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including BzRZ)AEZEMNFE)Z
interest payments computed using contractual Fler & &2 B A R AR A A]
rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESER ZFRARZFE:
at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the company can be required to
pay:
2023
ZEC-=F
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted ~ 1vyearor  lessthan  less than
interest Carrying  cash flow on demand 2 years 5years  More than
rate amount EHFEEE  -FRF SR-FE SRWEE 5 years
BRA= REE ReRELE EZEX  SREE  OREFE  SREE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'O00
TER TER THET TERL TERT TET
Trade payables ERER - 142 142 142 - - -
Financial liabilities included st AE M ERTFUE R
in other payables S HEL 2/
and accruals af - 3,748 3,748 3,748 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 14.3 13,146 19,000 - - 19,000 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 5.38 t0 14.31 1,821 2,232 757 641 834 -
5.38%14.31
18,857 25,122 4,647 641 19,834 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

6. €MITHR®

Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HIHEMEEBRMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] #mEELE (&)
2022
Total More than ~ Mare than
contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
rate amount  AAVFEER  —FR% SR-FE  SRREFE 5 years
ERA% FHE Beness fEZ% PRRE SREE SRAE
%  HKFOOD  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HKS0OO  HK$OOO
TFiEn ARG ThEL FiEn ThL ThEr
Trade payables ERER - 72 72 72 - - -
Financial liabilities included ~ 5f AEth /58 )
in other payables JEAHEL 2R
and accruals A - 3,717 3,717 3,717 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 14.3 11,501 19,000 - - 19,000 -
Lease liabilities REEE 3.461t05.38 7,204 7,763 2,938 1,654 3,171 -
3.4625.38
22494 30552 6,727 1654 22,171 -
Fair values (c) 2¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

AEBZBHERAINEZERTA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

7.

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management business — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs, share of result of an associate, share-
based payments and income tax expense. This is reported
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #BPEHE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRIEAZ2MEKED BT AKE Z I
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating @moEE AEERAEGE-
segment.
Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
BE-E-CEZ-ACt-ALEE HE-T--F=A=+-AIFE
Filmed Filmed
Cinema entertainment, Cinema  entertainment,
investment new media investment new media
and  exploitations and  exploitations
management  and licensing management  and licensing
business  businesses Total business businesses Total
EYRY EYRE
HiRE ke
FhiRE kY Fhig RER
REBRH  BEEEE B REEREE  BHEER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thx ThT TR TER TER TER

Segment Revenue Dl 5,522 - 5,522 8,494 - 8,494
Segment Results AHEE

Reportable segment result 2R BEE 2,351 (1,750) 601 2,410) (15) (2,425)
Unallocated corporate income AAREERA 347 1,702
Unallocated corporate expenses FAREGERY (7,423) (10,138)
Share of result of an assaciate HME—FHBERREE (20) 8
Share-based payments MR AER 25 - (1,219)
Finance costs BEMNA (1,882) (2,601)
Loss before taxation BRAEE (8,377) (14,671)
Segment Assets IHEE

Reportable segment assets ERAPEE 2,291 357 2,648 2,817 370 3,187

Interests in an associate R—ABEARNER 16 570
Loan to an assaciate M-EAEERARHER - 16,029
Unallocated corporate assets APRECEAE 21,496 15,621

Consalidated total assets GREELE 24,160 35,407

Segment Liabilities AHER

Reportable segment; liabilties AERHPER 10,800 - 10,800 16,202 - 16,202

Convertible bonds #HkES 13,146 11,501

Unallocated corporate liabilities RAWCEER 2,334 3,057

Consolidated total liabilties GABERE 26,280 30,760
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #WBEH@®

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and MERSHEHN RS HESEERNE :

allocating resources between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other —

than interests in an associate, loan to an associate
and unallocated corporate assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments —

other than convertible bonds and unallocated
corporate liabilities.

Other segment information:

FMBEENBER 2WmoD 80 HER —
LWL F il R Ll W

/N

BHEREARDEEEEERIN -

Hvn HEHR

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE-Z-=F=-fA=+-HLEE

Filmed
Cinema entertainment,
investment new media
and exploitations
management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
2088
HERE
THERE RER
EEER  RITEER tEER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 7 7 Tz
Additions to property, plant and NE BERRERE
equipment 130 - - 130
Interest income FlEWA 4 1 18 23
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERRIERE
equipment 8 - - 8
Gain on lease modification MEBH 2,718 - = 2,718
Rent concession HeER 896 - - 896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. SBEHE @
Other segment information (Continued): Hit oy BWER (F) :

Year ended 31 March 2022
HE-_Z-—_F-A=+-HIEE

Filmed
Cinema entertainment,
investment new media
and  exploitations
management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
EYRE.
wiRE
ThiRE FER
REBEH  BITREER tEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
Additions to property, plant and NE BERRERE
equipment 10 - - 10
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE - - 1,557 1,557
Interest income MEWA 5 - 194 199
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BERIEFE
equipment 362 - - 362
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 238 - 546 784
Impairment of praperty, plant and 0¥ BERXEAE
equipment 209 - - 209
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 703 - 1,0M1 1,714
Gain on disposal of property, plant and ~ H &% BE MR E2
equipment Wods 16 - - 16
Gain on lease termination HEHIE 2 W 170 - - 170
Rent concession HeRE 75 - 48 123
Revenue from major products and services: REFTEEMRBRBZWE -
The Group’s revenue from its major products and services AEEKREFEEMRRB 2 WENAT :
were as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Cinema business ASTE Y 5,522 8,494
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7.
Geographical information:

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’'s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location of the customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based
on the physical location of assets in the case of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and the
location of the operation to which they are allocated in the
case of interests in an associate. Revenue from external
customers and information about non-current assets by
geographical location are detailed below:

SEBEE @)
HEER

AEBMEERNEFERFPEARLME ([H
BREXHB -FERZHMBNEREFM
B D - T E fm SRS AR  3F R

BEZMWEME %R BB L& iERE
RREEEMS  DEREEBERMWIHED M
AR —RBERRNERM S AREB
REMES D -REINBEP 2 Wt Rz
MBS D 2 IFRBEEERFINDT

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMPEF 2 Wz REFRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—BEo=F T B —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT
Hong Kong BB - - 16 570
PRC s 5,522 8,494 126 5
5,522 8,494 142 575
Revenue from major customers: REFERFZIWE

There are no major customers contributing over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil).

8. REVENUE 8.

An analysis of Group's revenue for the year from
operations, is as follows:

HE T =—#F#=-F=1+—BLEE &
EITERFEBMAEEKZEBLBI0% (=
T FE)

W i

MRAFEE AEBKEEB 2 WamD T
T

2023 2022
—ZE_= —E -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Revenue from cinema business KRBT ER 2 W 5,522 8,494
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. W&uwm
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHKZEMAD
customers
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Revenue from cinema business FATE A€
— Sales of movie tickets — at a point — HEERE — X KHH
in time 4,766 7,478
— Sales of snacks — at a point in time =~ — HEZTR — X —KFHEZ 421 690

— Advertising income — over time
— Management services income — over

— B — BEE R - g
— ERBHRA — BRI

time 85 109
— Others — Hft 250 208
Total #et 5,522 8,494

Contracts for advertising services typically have a 1 year
to 3 years non-cancellable term in which the Group bills a
fixed percentage on the box office takings. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

The prepaid amounts in membership cards (Note 26)
have no expiration and can be redeemed anytime at
customers’ discretion. The management of the Group
expected that the remaining performance obligation as at
31 March 2023 will be materially recognised as income
within one to two years after the year end.

BEERBAN—MRITE - E=F A
HIET HRAAEBURERANEER
DHRR AEEEERMBEHLR UKL
SEAERAEENSERRARE BB
MBREENEIOR/AFAITFRESRE
FRRERANNRZE-

2B RMIEFKE (K 7¥26) WAFE - 7]
BRBREZEFNERETHR AEEE
BEESERN - -_=F=A=+—HBHF
BRENETIERFREE EMFRELG
R AERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

9. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 9. HtuiSKkHEMBUA
2023 2022
—E-= - —
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHT

Exchange gain b H K a - 609

Interest income B A 23 199

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BB R RE 2 WS

equipment - 16

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB QR Z e - 822

Gain on lease termination MER I e - 170

Government grants (note 1) RS HERL (et 1) 596 43

Rent concession (note 2) MEER (H72) 896 123

Others HAtb 3 126

1,518 2,108
notes: Bt -

1. The government grants represent the subsidies received by 1. BREMEREERNTEEETRE
the Group from the government for the operation of BT IR e B A B T AT IR AR Bk AT
cinemas in the PRC of HK$332,000 (2022: HK$43,000) EIF AL 9 5l /332,000 T (=
and related to Employment Support Scheme provided by T = % :43,000/% 7t ) &264,000/%
Hong Kong Government of HK$264,000 (2022: Nil). T(ZEZZF %) - MEABZEH
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating ZRERIEHEREHRAETIE

to these grants.

2. It mainly represents rent concession provided to cinemas in 2. HFIZHEARZZ-NAFHUERES
PRC for the closure of business due to 2019 Novel (IFEHRE)MATRELITEEMNE
Coronavirus (“COVID-19"). BRHNESES-

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MBERE
2023 2022
=2-= S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESF HEEF S 1,645 2,251
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABZFEXH 237 350
1,882 2,601

w ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

11.

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

FRIRATES IR

FRILATE IR E AR (R A) THIRIR:

(crediting):
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN &
— Audit services — ZERE 900 850
— Other services — Hh R 250 50
Direct expenses of cinema business T EBEERX (M)
(note 1) 2,306 3,643
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB LREITE
equipment 8 362
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE - 784
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEME - BEREHE2
equipment e = (18)
Impairment of property, plant and ME  BE KRB RE
equipment - 209
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE - 1,714
Gain on lease modification MEBS .z W= (2,718) -
Gain on lease termination MEK Iz e = (170)
Short-term lease expenses HAEEERE 137 45
Staff costs (including directors’ BETIRA(BRESNE)
remuneration)
— Salaries and allowances — & MoEAh 5,768 6,916
— Equity settled share-based payments — RIBEEREE ARG R
B2 - 828
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRETEIH R 806 861
Equity settled share-based payments paid O fTERIRIZEZSEZ
to advisors VARR 7 7% B 7 2 15K - 391
note: K&t -
1. The direct expenses mainly represent the profit sharing 1. BEERXETEROCNERHEEAER

paid to film providers.

DR e

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company’'s
directors for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022

were as follows:

12. EFM&

HE_ T -_=FLKk_F-_—"F=A=+—
BEFEENSENARTEE 2w

T

Year ended 31 March 2023
BE_ZE_=-—F=-fA=+—-HILEE
Salaries,

allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and other benefit based
fee benefits scheme payments Total
& 28 EIREA RRH 5
E=me REMER T8 ERZAX gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET TERT TET
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi RS- - = = = =
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly — BBzt 80 40 - - 120
Mr. LAU Man Kit B3t 180 - - - 180
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice EZ#z+ - 328 15 - 343
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERHTE 90 30 - - 120
Independent non-executive B IHTEF

Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BEETLL 120 - - - 120
Mr. ONG King Keung FRALE (HiF3)

(note 3) 16 - - - 16
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak RKEBEE 120 - - - 120
Ms. CHAN Yuet Ching BBz L (Hit4)

(note 4) 81 - - - 81

687 398 15 - 1,100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12. EEM& »

Year ended 31 March 2022
BE_Z-_—#=-B=+—HItFE

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-
Directors’ and other benefit based
fee benefits scheme payments Total
e 2 RAREA VAR &
B2 REMEF E ERIAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET FTHET THET TAET
Executive Directors HiTERE
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi 25 AE - - - - -
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly B30z + 120 30 - 388 538
Mr. LAU Man Kit B3t 180 - - - 180
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice E &=zt - 328 15 440 783
Mr. LIN Jason (note 1) LIN Jason %4 (#1#£1) - 129 3 - 132
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERATAE 120 - - - 120
Non-executive Directors ~ FE#7i7E%F
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung ~ BRBEH T4+ (f172)
Hang Roberta (naote 2) 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive B HEHTEE
Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BXFrt 120 - - - 120
Mr. ONG King Keung FREAAE (HiE3)
(note 3) 120 - - - 120
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak RKEEE 120 - - - 120
810 487 18 828 2,143

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.

12. EEM& »

note 1: Appointed on 31 March 2021, suspended all duties and Wil RZE_—F=A=+—BEZE"
powers on 7 May 2021 and retired by rotation on 28 RZEZ—FRA+-HEEMBERG
September 2021 LiENRR-_ZE-_—FAAZ+N\H
IR {ERT
note 2: Resigned on 30 June 2021 M2 RZZEZ—FXA=Z+HHET
note 3: Resigned on 20 May 2022 M3 : R-E-_ R A-+HRE

note 4: Appointed on 29 July 2022

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
(excluding directors’ fee) were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The executive directors’ director’s fee shown above were
for their services as directors of the Company.

The non-executive directors’ and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, one of them (2022: two) are directors of
the Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The
emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2022:
three), are as follows:

13.

Had: R-TBE-—F+A-+HBEZE
XTI TEENNNe (TREEE
wWe) NARERARAIMAEEERE
AR A AR i S 1 o

EXATRATESERE RREERART
BEERREHEMRSM -

AR TEERBIUIIFATESTHE
TIRRERERNRRESAEHANREM
e

EEHFAR

AEEREZERTMABEFR Hb—F

TE T WMB)BARBIES EFH
BERN EXHTE- TR (ZTE-—F:
= Z)ANBZHMT

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e hEMET 1,697 1,437
Retirement scheme contributions RORET IR 159 162
1,856 1,599

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

13. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS(Continued)

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

13.

BEETmAR®

hERkaFMAR (BRESRAEMER)
ZEBIRHMEE T T

Number of employees

EBEAH
2023 2022
—E-= S ——
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AN 5 5

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022, no directors waived any emoluments.

14. TAXATION

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
there is no assessable profits for the current year (2022:
Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022.

14.

REBEEZZT_="FR_FT=__F=H
—t+—HLEFERN AEEYERAGR
SHMAB (BRES)INHEN EAE
EMBERNEE RE S IERBER 2 FE-
N REBEZE_=F R =2F=
A=+ BLtFER BESEHRELM
N -

nm

RENSHBMASN AEREEERE
2,000,0007% 7T 4 #| 7 Bt = /38.25% M
# #@2,000,000% T &% M B X &
16.5% - TR A ME WA K EEE S
i ) 1 4 A 121 8.5% By Bt — Bt R

P B R (A 5T s B M 9 16.5% 1 &
FBNSH

F A R 2 3 4 B R A R bk 3 SR AT
REBNGHBB (T __F 8)-

HE—E-_—ER-_FT-_—F#=RH=+—
BHIEFEE - P EME QG ERHE25% 8
N BEMER-

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

14. TAXATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
tax authority in the PRC has grant concessionary tax rate
at 20% to some of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
because the size and assessable profits of those
subsidiaries have fulfilled the condition as small and micro
corporations defined by the relevant tax authority.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as there is no assessable profits for the current
year (2022: Nil).

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

14. RIE®)

HEZZT_=—FRk=-F-__F=-H=+1—
BIEFE AEEFHBFAREARETFTH
BB AR O EENE20% AR%E
WMEARMBRERERFENEEHEH
TR BT E 2 /9 /MR ZE AR -

HRAFRERRT G PTABES 2
FRCEMAENREB (T —F &)

RNEFHBERLE BB R Z BB A E
BYERNOT

loss as follows:

Loss before taxation

Tax at the respective applicable tax rate
Income not subject to taxation
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss
Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised

BRELATE 1R

HHERMBERTERFEZIHA
BARBTUA

AT HRL AR 5 R R 2 B S
AERNEABRZHETE
B A 75 B R BERR 2 T HRLE B
ZH8

2023 2022
—E_-= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAT
(8,377) (14,671)
(1,191) (2,679)
(808) (185)
1,336 1,484
1,596 2,019
(933) (639)

Taxation charged for the year

AEERAZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

14. TAXATION (Continued) 14. RIE®)
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERELEHEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong
of approximately HK$25,130,000 (2022:
HK$25,314,000) and approximately HK$67,574,000
(2022: HK$65,059,000) respectively available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five to eight years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

Expiry dates of tax losses arising in the PRC are as
follows:

RBEHR AEBERETFRAEREEZ
AEAMIBEEE S 5425,130,000/%
T(ZEZ-F:25,314,000/% ) &
467,574,000 (=& - —F:
65,059,000/ 7T ) ] 4 A 1E K §5 K R
F o F P K TR 2R T FI 2ROR - B
RABDBHEBERERECHEBEEE R
BIRTHBERY - RE B2 HRIEEEA
REBEBEEEEFERFAENFLES
MEEEEZRIEBIBRI I ERPLE-

RPBEEANRBESENZHBEMNT

2023 2023 2022 2022

—Bo=F o= —T-_— —E-—F

RMB'0O00 HK$000 RMB00O HK$'000

AR®T T TERT AREKTT FHET

2023 —E-=F - - 2,652 3,270
2024 —EOF 2,350 2,685 2,350 2,898
2025 —E-RF 2,381 2,719 2,381 2,935
2026 —EZRF 1,209 1,381 1,209 1,491
2027 —E+F 4,717 5,388 4,717 5,816
2028 —E-N\F 4,121 4,708 - -
2029 —E-hF 7,221 8,249 7,221 8,904
21,999 25,130 20,530 25,314

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB5,313,000
(equivalent to HK$6,069,000) (2022: RMB10,9939,000
(equivalent to HK$13,561,000)). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible

RIS HIR - A EE AR A A
R #5,313,0007T (# % 16,069,000/
7T) (ZT = —%: AR¥10,999,000t
(8% 713,561,000/87T) ) - R T AT
4 15 B SR T30 3% ) AT PR DA 988 AT R B 2
B WL EREEAINRYSEERREL
MIRBE -

temporary differences can be utilised.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

14.

15.

TAXATION (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$3,751,000
(2022: HK$5,849,000). Withholding tax resulting from
the distribution of such profits would amount
approximately to HK$375,000 (2022: HK$585,000) if
they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders
outside the PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is not probable that these profits will be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT ik
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14.

15.

RE®
AEDELEHEAE

R E BRI B QR 2 AR DK M A B
3,751,000 (=== :
5,849,000/ 7T ) ° fisl 18 55 [7) 1 B LA b 2
ERRNRL/BERIEH 2K - B9 KA B &
MEL 2 FANHLR375,0008 T (=F
— —%:585,000# 7T) ° A AR
AEHZEMNBARZREBRAERRA
EETERA RKRDIRZF M - S &
SR EREE R ARG

Bz 2

EEVFAERARNBE_T_=F=FH
=t—RAEFEZEARE (2T
&) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE

16. HIREGE

Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREEEE
2023 2022
—E_= —E-—
HK cents HK cents
B A
Total basic and diluted loss per share BRERNE EEIEEEE (8.80) (14.77)

The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share
are as follows:

RAGEEREARBEERZERRE
BRI TR BT

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR RIHEA A B ANFE E1E
of the Company (9,030) (13,779)
2023 2022
—=E-= —F_—
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERREEEE
shares for the purpose of basic and 2 AR N HE T AR B
diluted loss per share 102,644,466 93,271,316

The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share
options granted by the Company and conversion of the
Company’s outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in
calculating the diluted loss per share during the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 because they are
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share.

EtEHE T -_=ZFR T - —F=H
=t HIFESREEBEREHGE
BARB RN Z BRERETE AR T
W ARATE 2 AT AR 55 1 H iR m 38 0 2 iR
P REABEHAEEREEEBARE
SEWE -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. X BERXE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers  equipment vehicles Total
HE &
NEEE BERKS Bl RERRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost A
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FNA—H 18,215 19,401 84 4,148 1,797 43,645
Additions NE - 7 - 3 - 10
Disposal HE - (878) - - - (878)
Currency realignment B 5 3% 767 802 3 176 - 1,748
At 31 March 2022 and RZZZZF=A=1-8
1 April 2022 L-—E-—FNA—H 18,982 19,332 87 4,327 1,797 44,525
Additions NE - 130 - - - 130
Currency realignment i 5 3% (1,396) (1,423) (6) (318) - (3,143)
At 31 March 2023 RZZE-Z=%=A=1+-8 17,586 18,039 81 4,009 1,797 41,512
Accumulated depreciation and ~ EitHERRE
impairment
At 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FWA—-A 18,121 18,965 79 4111 1,797 43,073
Charge for the year EEXW 32 308 - 22 - 362
Disposal HE - (858) - - - (858)
Impairment for the year (note 19) FRi/E (#:#19) 64 125 - 20 - 209
Currency realignment [ 5 5% 765 792 3 174 - 1,734
At 31 March 2022 and RZZZZF=A=1-H
1 April 2022 R=ZE-—FWNA—H 18,982 19,332 82 4,327 1,797 44,520
Charge for the year EEXW - 8 - - - 8
Currency realignment i 5 3% (1,396) (1,422) (6) (318) - (3,142)
At 31 March 2023 RZZZ=%=A=1—H 17,586 17,918 76 4,009 1,797 41,386
Net book value RERE
At 31 March 2023 RZZEZ=%=R=+-H - 121 5 - - 126
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZF=A=1—8H - - 5 - - 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. (ERREEE
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the FEMBIRARKINTATERHEEZ €
following amounts relating to leases: LR
HK$'000
FHET
Net carrying amount at 1 April 2021 MRZZEZ—FMA—HZEREFE 921
Additions nE 1,557
Depreciation charge FrEMX (784)
Impairment (note 19) BB (K1aE19) (1,714)
Exchange realignment M 55 2 20

R-E-_—F=A=+—8-
“E-—FNPA—ABK
TE_=F=ZA=+—HZEm%E -

Net carrying amount at 31 March 2022,
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023

note: During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group and the et REBE-Z-_=F=-A=+—BHULtFE"

lessor has mutually agreed to revise the lease contract for
a cinema in the PRC as a result of a decrease in the area
under lease. Lease liabilities had been decreased by
HK$2,718,000. Respective right-of-use assets had been
fully impaired in previous year. A gain of lease modification
of HK$2,718,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group and the
lessor has mutually agreed to early terminate lease
contract for an office in PRC. Lease liabilities had been
decreased by HK$170,000. Respective right-of-use assets
had been fully impaired in previous year. A gain of lease
termination of HK$170,000 was recognised in profit or
loss.

AEEmERD AEEEEEAR K
FRZERTFEEZRENEESLH M
EBBERA2,718,0008 T- & AME
AEEEESNEFEHRRE - EX
A& W #=2,718,0007% 7T 2 1A 18 = i

=7
o ©

REBE-Z-_—F=-A=+—HULFE"
REBEREHBAAD LB ERATRIES
EREEnHEEaN -HERBEERD
170,000% - SHEEAREEE RN X
FEHARBE - KRLEBE RS
170,000/ LB R B FER

2023 2022

=A== S

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases G I S A RAA B 2 137 45
Total cash outflow for leases HEMR ML A% 1,703 3,470
Additions to right-of-use assets TREEERE = 1,857

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. FHREE»
For both years, the Group leases various offices, cinemas RREFE AEBHEESHAE #hk
and storage for its operations. Lease contracts are ROEREEEZRA -FFTYMNHEES L
entered into for fixed term of 2 to 15 years. Lease terms B & TE BAR R2E 155 - M E BRI IR E
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide P EEW - W A B A R A 6K R MR
range of different terms and conditions. In determining 4 o FA 7 7E 78 B e BT 4 S AT 0 BA 9
the lease term and assessing the length of the non- ER AREERGHANERTBEEELN
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a Al og H ATV HAR
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for AEBRZRAPRAEEHIT IEMBEE-
various offices. As at 31 March 2023, the portfolio of RZEZ=F=-A=-+—H GSHHEEAHR
shortterm leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term GEEMAER T AMEIERE 2R A
leases to which the shortterm lease expense disclosed in amlamilo
Note 11.
Variable lease payments ABHEESR
Leases of cinemas are either with only fixed lease BN ERERAREHEENRSE
payments or contain variable lease payment that are BERTIE13%HE FEE (BHE AR
based on 11 to 13% of net sales, which is tatal sales less HEMKER)WASEENTOMEZ
sales tax and charges, and minimum annual lease —RERAEHNEENXEFERENNK
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment B NREREAEELEMENTRHE
terms are common in cinemas business in the PRC where THREBTFBRRAER BE_T_=ZFK
the Group operates. The amount of fixed and variable R F=A=+—HLFEENIE
lease payments paid/payable to relevant lessors for the HTFEBLEANEERTERENRS
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022: H
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE—FE-=F=H=1—HIFE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments payments
EXRBE BEEMNR  AUE#AR ARERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT R FAET
Cinema without variable lease & A] S &5
payments B 1 534 - 534
Cinemas with variable lease B #HEENTN
payments BT 1 377 - 377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

18. (FRHESEE &)

Variable lease payments (Continued) ATSHEEARE)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE T —F=H=1—HIFE
Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments payments
EXREAE BEMR UMK AREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET
Cinema without variable lease & A & f & 1 3149
payments A 1 826 - 826
Cinemas with variable lease EBREHEENTRH
payments B 1 1,386 - 1,386

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by cinemas with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of revenue in
future years.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2023, lessors of various
offices, warehouse and cinemas provided rent
concessions to the Group through rent reductions ranging
from 23% to 53% (2022: 23%) over three to ten months
(2022: four) and waiver of rent for 3 months (2022: 1
month).

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in
HKFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute
lease modifications.

ERTRMRIEREES B E A
EERENEYREELRBNE LA
e B e VO
LD -

HERR

HE-_Z-_=—F-A=+—BItFE &
MAE REREREHBABARN==1
AR (ZZE=_—F :m@AA) ARHE23% =
53% (ZE - —F:23%) AR =1EA
(ZEZ=F:—@AA)HeRAE B RZH#
et -

ZEHEREIEANERERIEEKME
BENAB B HRELERE16.468B fF
RHRAB GG EAKRECERAAITRE
TETFHEEHRAEREE BN

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

7



50!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

19. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT 19. BEXREREMERHYE -BE

AND EQUIPMENT, AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
RELATED TO THE CINEMA GROUP

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the business
performance of the subsidiaries of Shanghai Bingo was
below expectation, the management of the Group
concluded there was indication for impairment and
performed impairment assessment on the CGUs of
Cinema business.

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the
subsidiaries of Shanghai Bingo, which are considered as
individual CGUs to which the assets belong. In addition,
the management of the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of the Cinema Group. The recoverable amounts
of the above CGUs have been determined on the basis of
value in use.

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections
based on the latest financial budgets approved by the
management of the Company covering a 5-year period at
pre-tax discount rates of 16.1%. Cash flow projection
during the budget period was based on the operating
costs, budgeted sales, growth rate and gross margin
during the budget period and the budgeted sales and
budgeted margin have been determined based on past
performance and management’'s expectations for the
future changes in the market.

Based on the result of the assessment, the directors of
the Company determine that the recoverable amount of
the CGUs is lower than the aggregate carrying amount of
the CGUs and full impairment was provided for the year
ended 31 March 2022. The impairment amount has
been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets, such that the carrying
amount of each category of asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal and its
value in use. Accordingly, the Group recognised
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets of HK$2039,000 and HK$1,714,000
respectively during the year 31 March 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. RBIEXFHHER

2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Unlisted shares ¥k EH R4
Share of net assets DIEFEE (9) 11
Amount due from an associate (note b) FEUEE & A F31E (MaEh) 25 559
16 570
Loan to an associate (note c) F—EEBEANTREDER (Mitc) - 16,029

The following list contains the particulars of the Group's

TREEAKEBR L RBNFT:

associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
BRBRRLH
Form of Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
Name of business incorporation  issued and effective Held by the  Held by Principal
associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries  activity
AMRYIE  ERTREE  AREH
BENRER ERERE 2ENE BAFE BRER ARREE  MERARE IEED
Goal Creation Incorporated  Hong Kang 100 shares of ~ 49% - 49% Investing in Virtual Reality
Game Limited Bl B HK$1 each and Mixed Reality Project
ABEEARAR 100k & HEE REEREERRAER
BTG EH

(a) Fair value of investments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
associate is a private company and there was no
qguoted market price available for the investment.

(b) Amount due from an associate

The amount due from an associate is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance
is denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair
value.

(a)

(b)

REZDVE

R|EPR NEE 2B L R R/
ARBEBRARELEHISHRE -

IR B B AT
BE - AERRIIAB T
’AFHE$ He

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

20. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(c)

Loan to an associate

On 30 September 2019, the Group entered into a
loan agreement ("2019 Loan Agreement”) with the
associate. Pursuant to the 2019 Loan Agreement,
the Group advanced a loan of RMB16,000,000 to
the associate for three years. The associate placed
the loan into a bank as bank deposit and time deposit
for interest income.

The loan is unsecured, bearing interest at the same
interest rate as for bank deposit and time deposit
placed in the bank mentioned above. In September
2021, the Group has confirmed with Goal Creation
Game Limited (“Goal Creation”) that Goal Creation
allowed the Group to withdraw the loan partially up
to RMB5,000,000 on demand and the remaining
RMB1 1,000,000 remained to be repayable in
September 2022. The loan was fully repaid during
the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amount shown in
the associates’ financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs:

20. WERELATIHESR &

(c)

M —EBE A TREER

RZE-NAFAA=1TRH KAEEHA
BERRFYERBHR (2T
FERBZ]) RE-_ZF-NFER
W& NEBEREBZERERRK
AR #16,000,0007T ' &8 =4 -
ZBMERABERFARTERR
1777 3 N e BT SR A ER A B ©

ZEERAEEM FHRE FiE
ANRITHVIRTT R N B E 50 7
EHER-RZT_—FNA K&H
ERESERERAR ([AIF])HE
R BB AFFAREIREREBO IR
&% AR#5,000,000TH E 5 A
K& T~ AR®11,000,0007C 3787
TEC_HFNABE-ERERENR

ERERE-

BRIZEBENRNMBERNMESHSIW
T-ATHBEMRZIRE L RRARES
B BHREENRE MBREATERE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Current assets MEVEE 7 16,611
Current liabilities MENAE (24) (16,588)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) BEF5H (17) 23
Group’s effective interest REBNER#ER 49% 49%
Share of net (liabilities)/assets 2ME(BRE)/BEFHE (9) 11
Revenue Yz - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB, & H (40) 18
Dividend received from the associate FNE U E = A RS

during the year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FERARER
The aging of the Group’s trade receivables based on the REBERBEZREH 2 BURFERE DT
invoice date is analysed as follows: W
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A 132 14
31-60 days 31260H - -
61-90 days 61290H - -
Over 90 days 90H M £ 3 53
135 67
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : 8 Hi{= & B 12 & & - -
135 67
As at 31 March 2023, included in the Group’s trade RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H AEEEK
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying EREHRBEREAE/3,000E T (=
amount of HK$3,000 (2022: HK$53,000) which are T - —F:53,0008 ) BERHmEBEE
past due for over 90 days as at the reporting date. #HASOA DA _E B FE Y FRIE ©
For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media M EBFAREIRGE FTEBRE R
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit FHEER>HAMES AEBLTERRF
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally ZTEEH—RBARERXKEI20B 5%
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The 7N £2 [B) B o S H ok Uk (O] FE Uk 3008 4 R AR
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding B -BREIEEaE TR AMES-
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by FT B FE U BR SRTE EAR — F A I [B] o
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are JE W AR R R (E ST FE I ER M B o

set out in note B.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 22, HftifEUtFRIE - e RAFRIEA

2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Other receivables H i W 5k I8 274 1,189
Deposits and prepayments e RIBR IR 616 723

Monies held by a trust for share award VAR 17 B2t 1S 555 =
scheme BEMNEE - 5,000
890 6,912

Represented by: K=

Non-current assets EMENE E 343 547
Current assets MENE E 547 6,365
890 6,912

As the monies held by a trust managed by a trustee which
is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and is licensed to carry on the regulated
activities in connection with asset management, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risk
and the corresponding expected credit loss of the monies
were immaterial. Due to termination of share award
scheme, the monies were returned to the Group in August
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. BaRBRe&EED
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFEIBS 22,993 11,824

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on
daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group’s
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2023 and 2022
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2023, deposits and cash placed with
banks in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$1,857,000 (2022: HK$3,758,000). Remittance of
funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the government of Mainland China.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 0.25% (2022: 0.001% to 0.3%)
per annum.

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of
the counterparty banks and financial institution are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for expected
credit losses is provided.

RITASKRENESRBITERFER ZZE)
FIEROF B - AREBR T _=FR=
E__FZA=Z+—HZRITEHLES
ZAFEHEEEE REEARS -

RZBZ=F=R=+—H TFHRH
NI IRTT 2 F R RIRE /41,857,000
T (ZEZZ%:3,758,000E L) - &
T E P BRI AR S B A B F RS2
R INE & B4R Bl M AR BIFT AR IR

SBITREHIZE40.001% E0.25% (- %
— 4 :0.001% %£0.3% ) ¥ 7 55 | & 5
5o

BHE-_T-_=ZFKr-_F-_—_F=ZA=+—
HIEEE NEEHRITESETRERT
BT EHER BFARTLEREEER
DA EEENK M ERTEREEER
FHiRRsE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. FEFHARRR
The aging of the Group’s trade payables based on the REERBEEEAPNENERR KRR
invoice date is analysed as follows: MaAT
2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 30 days 30B A 120 48
31-60 days 31260H - -
61-90 days 61290H - -
Over 90 days 90H M £ 22 24
142 72
Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30 e 2 MR HEAIR — A2 A30B AR
days.
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values FrEes AR HILEMNRERAEREE
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable WREEAFESERAS -
approximation of fair value.
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25, HthEFIRIEREFRIA
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Other payables and accruals (note 1) HAth [l < 5138 I FE 5T RRIE
(K1a£1) 3,748 3,717
notes: Kt -
1. Included in the amount mainly represents auditor’s 1. BT E2EZHENB £ 2900,000% T

remuneration of approximately HK$900,000 (2022:
HK$850,000) and accrued rental and utilities expenses of

approximately HK$1,313,000 (2022: HK$1,136,000).

2.  All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be

settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

26. CONTRACTS LIABILITIES

26. S¥AaE

2023 2022
=== -z
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
As at 1 April RIUA—H 8,266 7,994
Revenue recognised during the year in FAERERA NEE
relation to carried-forward contract ol
liabilities (650) (1,421)
Receipt in advance from customers FAWERE P #R
for the year 414 1,358
Currency realignment [EPTIEEE (607) 335
As at 31 March R=ZBA=+—H 7,423 8,266
Cinema investment and management EhRERERE
The balance was a prepaid amount in the membership ERAEPREERMNEBENNREBE-BEP

card by the customers. The balance will be recognised as
income when the customers buy the movies tickets, and
the corresponding movie was broadcasted, and snacks by
utilising the prepaid amount in the membership card.

The timing of the transfer of the movies tickets and
snacks are at the discretion of the customers and the
management considers that the contract liabilities would
not have significant financing component.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle in respect of cinema
investment and management segment and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognised in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

EHEERANCHEBEERXR (HEMN
?E%& REN) RTRE SRR RK

o

Bk ¢

,—‘— 8/ 55
ERETENR

BERRE

RERNEREREPETR &
HMBEBEYEEAREAKED

Fﬁ*ﬁ‘A waE TEHHEAZIKEIT/KJL&’Q&%?
EORMNERKEBRANES GHRER

/_\*E/é_'l//lb@j

A4 [ 30 45 9140 S P B 40 (T
R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAR
2023 2022
—E-= —E- -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ENfHEEE:
Within one year —FR 556 2,689
Within a period of more than one year —F EENERMRF
but not more than two years 502 1,497
Within a period of more than two years MEANELETBBARSF
but not more than five years 763 3,018
1,821 7,204
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : 1218 3 R EI EiE 4
months shown under current liabilities mEaE (556) (2.689]
Amount due for settlement after 12 1218 B &£ B HAES W
months shown under non-current kRBEE
liabilities 1,265 4515

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities are ranged from 5.38% to 14.31%
(2022: ranged from 3.46% to 5.38%).

All lease obligations are denominated in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 1 April 2020, the outstanding amount of convertible
bonds issued to Mr. Chiau Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”) was
HK$30 million, those convertible bonds being Tranche 1
to Tranche 5 of the convertible bonds issued in February
2010 and subsequently modified in March 2020.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
component and equity component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 28. AIMBRIRH (5

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the remaining
outstanding convertible bonds of Tranche 1 were redeemed
at a redemption amounting to HK$10,000,000, which is
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the outstanding
convertible bonds of Tranche 1.

On 7 December 2021, the Company entered into the
Subscription and Settlement Agreement (“Agreement”)
with Mr. Chiau, the holder of convertible bonds. According
to the Agreement, the Company agreed to issue and Mr.
Chiau agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$19,000,000 (‘2022 CB"), the
consideration of which was set-off against the principal
amount of the convertible bonds outstanding as at 7
December 2021.

The above settlement terms of the convertible bonds
between the Company and Mr. Chiau were considered as
renegotiation of convertible bonds and therefore the
original convertible bonds were extinguished and the new
convertible bonds were recognised on the date on which
the convertible bonds were issued.

The Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder were approved in the Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company on 14 March 2022, and
convertible bonds with principal amount of
HK$19,000,000 were issued to Mr. Chiau on 17 March
2022. As such, the Company had derecognised the
carrying amount of Tranche 2 to Tranche 5 convertible
bonds of approximately HK$15,980,000 and recognised
the fair value of convertible bonds of approximately
HK$20,181,000. The difference of approximately
HK$4,201,000 and related cost incurred for issuing
convertible bonds of approximately HK$722,000 had
been debited to reserve of the Company as Mr. Chiau is
also the substantial shareholder of the Company, it was
considered as an equity transaction. Details are described
in Note 33. During the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022, no 2022 CB was converted into shares of the
Company by the holder.

BE_Z_—F=A=1+—HILFE 51
HRI R R B A R B H IR HE R ZE1H)
AREBABMBRESFAERRI1I00% WE LD S
# (BP10,000,000/% 7T ) T LA fE [l

R-_E-—F+_A+tH AAF @A
BEHFBEARLETLREREE R
(IZW&l) - REZHRE AQRREER
ToMAEERERBEASEA
19,000,000/ st Al 2k E5H ([ = F
ZZFABRES]) HEHREABRZZ
T—FF+-AtRAZAREBABEKESZ
N BRI G o

RAREEFLER Y 2 Lt AR RESE
ERFBR S EHER AT RRES R
AHMKRESETHE BMATRRESERN
AIEZRETT A R

ZMEREBETHETHIZIER -2
ZZF=ZAtHBEARRBREENAE
EHE YR —_ZE-_—=F==A++AMAEF
S A B 17 K 4 58 419,000,000/ T 2 7]
BRESF-EiL ARARERIEHERELH
ZESHP T BRBRESFNEREY
15,980,000/ 70 W HER AT R ES 2
NF{E%20,181,0007 J ° 3 17 ] #2 A%
BEHAEE 2 =5 44,201,000 7T & 18
B Ak AN 49722,000/% 7T & 5t AR A 7 R4
H BARALTENAARREBERE HHE
WARE—ERER S - FIBH N33 °
BHE-_T-_=ZFk-_F-_—_F=ZA=+-—
BIEFEE —T_—_FraRELFMEE
BB AEBBRARNNE KD -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 28. AIEBRR%F (@)

The fair value of the liability component which was BERBSZATE(BBLEXMGBEMFR
determined by independent professional valuers Sino- BRI ARARIEE) NETER BEX
Infinite Apprasial Limited on the issue date, is the present FIEEAKESREREEFER14.3%
value of the contractually determined stream of future B E I LA RE R R BAERIR
cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate 14.3% enE EEERAREERE. @:I:—T::

and providing substantially the same cash flows, on the F=ZA=+—H JJ:EF ¥1Eﬁ$§§
same terms, but without the conversion option. The RETME D WET AR
residual amount of the fair value amount are assigned as
equity amount and included in equity during the year ended
31 March 2022.
The movement of the liability component and equity FR - ABMRESBESS RESEHSZ
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out SHHIIMT
below:
Liability Equity
component component
aENs EEBD
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 RZE-Z—FMHHA—H 13,752 40
Imputed interest charged uﬂﬁ BEHE 2,251 -
Issue of convertible bonds TR R E S 11,438 8,743
Extinguishment of convertible bonds %Eﬂ?ﬁéﬂx%% (15,940) (40)
At 31 March 2022 RZEZ=ZF=A=+—H 11,501 8,743
Imputed interest charged EEHEER S 1,645 -
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=HF=+—H 13,146 8,743
Liability component BEHS
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Mature within 1 year —FAEH = -
Mature later than 1 year —F 1235 13,146 11,501
13,146 11,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL

29. B&&E

As at 31 March 2023
R-E-=%=A=1+—-H

As at 31 March 2022

RZE-_—#=HA=+—H

Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE AfE BHEE [EED
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T TER Fix THT
Authorised: ETE
At the beginning of the year, ordinary R4 §REED. 1T
shares of HK$0.1 (2022: HK$0.01) (_ S-_F:001%57)
each LR 2,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation (note 1) i ’V\G} (Mzt1) - - (18,000,000 -
At the end of the year, ordinary shares  RE R GREEC.1ET
of HK$0.1 each VT AR 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
At the beginning of the year, ordinary &) BREEC. 18T
shares of HK$0.1 (2022: HK$0.01) (ZZE=-=F:001%1)
each VE R 102,645 10,265 855,385 8,554
Placing of shares [note 2) RERD (Wi2) - - 171,060 1,711
Share consolidation [note 1) WAn &0 (HFt1) - - (923,800) -
At the end of the year, ordinary shares K&K SR EEC. 15T
of HK$0.1 each #) 3 i 102,645 10,265 102,645 10,265
note 1: BT -

On 16 March 2022, the Company completed share consolidation
which was approved at the extraordinary general meeting held on

14 March 2022. Details of share consolidation is as follows:

The Company implemented a share consolidation on the basis
that every ten existing shares of HK$0.01 of the Company
combined into one consolidated share of HK$0.1 effective on 16

March 2022.

RZBEZZF=ZA+XB ARQRFZHERHE
O HEERZE = A+ MABHMNREREE
BIRE FEEBEB - RMDAFFBIHINMT

AREESI0RARREREEO.OTETHR
BRMAMHR—REREED.1ETHE RN

R EAEE

AR -

TR EH BT _F=A+H

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE

=



X

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—

29.

F_=F=A=+—HIFFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

note 2:

On 27 September 2021, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent in respect of the placement of
171,080,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each to investors at
a price of HK$0.034 per share. The placement was completed
on 18 October 2021 and the premium on the issue of shares
amounting to approximately HK$3,750,000 (net of transaction
cost) was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

Share award scheme

The Board of the Company approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) with
effect from 14 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i) recognise
and reward the contributions by certain eligible
participants and to give incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. Unless otherwise early
terminated by the resolution of the board, the Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Scheme is operated through a trustee
which is independent of the Group. The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be (i) issued
by way of new issue of shares; and/or (ii) acquired by the
trustee from the open market after the notification and
instruction by the Company. The trustee shall not hold
more than 10% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

On 16 August 2019 and 14 October 2019, the Company
granted an aggregate of 1,279,000 (adjusted for share
consolidation effective on 16 March 2022) awarded
shares to two executive directors, namely Mr. Chiau and
Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, and 2,986,000 (adjusted for
share consolidation effective on 16 March 2022) awarded
shares (collectively referred to as the “Awarded Shares”)
to other employees and advisors of the Group (collectively
referred to as the “Selected Participants”). Subject to the
acceptance of the Selected Participants and that the
Selected Participants remain as employees and advisors
of the Group on the vesting date of the Awarded Shares,
the Awarded Shares shall vest in them on 15 August
2020, 13 October 2020 and 13 October 2021, at which
time the Awarded Shares were transferred to the
Selected Participants at nil consideration.

As additional time was required for the trustee to acquire
the Awarded Shares on market, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Share Award Scheme, in October 2021,
the Company and the relevant Selected Participants
mutually agreed that part of the Awarded Shares, which
were originally vested evenly on the first and second
anniversary of the date of grant, would be vested to the
Selected Participants in August 2024 or the date when
the trustee has completed the acquisition of all the
Awarded Shares on market, whichever is earlier.

On 14 August 2022, in order to reduce administrative
cost of the Company and improve the cashflow position of
the Company, the Board has resolved to terminate the
Share Award Scheme with effect from the same date. As
at 14 August 2022, none of the Awarded Shares
previously granted to the Selected Participants have been
vested and the Selected Participants agreed with the
Company to cancel such Awarded Shares without
compensation.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
Company did not repurchase any shares of the Company
through the trustee of the Share Award Scheme from the
open market. No share award expense was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group
recognised a share award expense of HK$51,000 during
the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of the
Awarded Shares granted. As at 31 March 2023 and
2022, no shares were held through the trustee of the
Share Award Scheme.

Share options scheme

Details of the Company's share option schemes and the
share options granted under the share option schemes
are included in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

As at the year ended, long-term debt (convertible bonds)
and total cash balances are approximately
HK$13,146,000 (2022: HK$11,501,000) and
HK$22,993,000 (2022: HK$11,824,000) respectively.
As the total cash amounts are higher than the interest
bearing debt amounts, the net debt-to-equity ratio is not
applicable.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. BR&E (@)
Capital management (Continued) EXREE(E)
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RRASEEAMERFTETZINNE
subject to externally imposed capital requirement. L BRI ER S o
30. RESERVES 30. e
The Company AN
Equity
component of Share  Share award
Share  Contributed  convertible options scheme  Accumulated
premium surplus honds reserve reserve losses Total
TRRkES k%R
RiEE EfBR  ZEENS  ERERE BE R RitER @it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T Tt Tt Tt Tt
At 1 April 2021 RZF--FEA-A 420,810 130,295 40 7,963 1,687 (565,354) (4,959)
Issue of convertible bonds ~ &7TATARES - - 8,743 - - - 8,743
Extinguishment of convertible BB ATARES
bonds - - (40) - - (4,923) (4,963)
Issue of shares on placement BE£8%17R 3,750 - - - - - 3,750
Issue of share aptions HBhRE - - - 1,168 - - 1,168
Lapse of share options BREXT - - - (5,943) - 5,943 -
Equity settled share award ~ IAEREE 2R %E %4
arrangement - - - - ) - 91
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - (17,647) (17,647)
At 31 March 2022 RZBZZEZR=1-H
and 1 April 2022 RZE--%#RA-A 424,560 130,295 8,743 2,788 1,738 (581,981) (13,857)
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - - (6,079) (6,079)
Cancellation of awarded L RS
shares - - - - (1,738) 1,738 -
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=E=f=1-H 424,560 130,295 8,743 2,788 - (586,322) (19,936)

At 31 March 2023, no reserves is available for
distribution to owners of the Company (2022: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of

the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company at the time of the Group

reorganisation.

NRZEBEZ=F=A=+—H HEIHEHS
RKFARRBEEAZREB(ZZE ==
;) o
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31.

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed
to the Group. The Scheme expired on 14 August 2022.
Under the Scheme, the Board of the Company may grant
options to certain employees of the Group and any
distributor, contractor, business partner, promoter, service
provider, customer, supplier, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in
recognition of their contribution to the Group.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued annually upon
the exercise of all options which initially shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme and thereafter, if
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
(“Scheme Mandate Limit") as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit by the Shareholders. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the number of Shares to be issued upon
the exercise of all the Options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of O0.1% of the
Company's shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. RERRERtE® ()

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
Board of the Company and the exercise price will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average

BRHZBRESARRL AHE21H
e BREMNIBTRER BR
BUNEMNBREEIEERARFESES
BE<sAMBYRAREETE BITEES
AEEROARBBRMNE L ARz .S
B: (AR ROV EREL BT A E
2E A 2T E K i) A2 BB

closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business HE=&FF2&aE-
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value FERPIBRERBREATFEZFEH
of options are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated RERE B TG R 5E33 o

financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme FR ZABBETREZBRENREE
and movements in such holdings during the year were as FIBENT
follow:
Number of shares issuable under options held
REFMEERET FRTZROHAE
Balance at
Balance at Lapsed 31 March
1 April 2022 before share 2023
Share W-ZB=-—% consolidation R-E-=fF
Category option type A—H Granted RBRHBEHAT  Adjustment =F=+—H
L) BREES A [5F: BRM HE iR
‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000
TR TR TR TR TR
Directors £ 2018A 1,500 - - - 1,500
2021A 1,708 - - - 1,708
Employees EE 2018A 750 - - - 750
Advisors B 2020A 850 - - - 850
2021A 854 - - - 854
5,662 - - - 5,662
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. ESRR#EETE ()
The following share options were outstanding under the HE_Z-__F=A=1T—HILFE %
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2022: FTEITE T MARITE 2 BRENT

Number of shares issuable under options held

RIEFEBEEN TRTZBHEAE

Balance at
Balance at Lapsed 31 March
1 April 2021 before share  Adjustment 2022
Share MWZ_T=Z—F consolidation (note 1) WZZ=-—
Category option type mA—A Granted {0 & PRI #A® =ZA=1+—H
Ll BRERE 2R ¥ BRM B oot
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Fig Fir Tk T Fig
Directors S 2016A 9,750 - (9,750) - -
2017A 8,500 - (8,500) - -
2018A 15,000 - - (13,500) 1,500
2021A - 17,080 - (15,372) 1,708
Employees EE 2018A 7,500 - - (6,750) 750
Advisors BN 2016A 1,500 - (1,500) - -
2020A 25,500 - (17,000) (7,650) 830
2021A - 8,540 - (7,686) 854
67,750 25,620 (36,750) (50,958) 5,662
note 1: Adjustment for share consolidation effective from 16 Ha1: #E-_fT-_—F=A+tBE4%Z
March 2022. Rin & HHEL FHEE
The Company has not recognised an expense as share- HE-_Z-_=F=-A=+—HBLEFE &
based payments for the year ended 31 March 2023. NAIRERR X RARGD BER 25
The Company has recognised an expense as share-based HEe-_Z2-_—_F#=ZA=Z=+—HIFE XK
payments for the year ended 31 March 2022 with an NRAEHERFA X BIARSD RER 2 MK
amount of HK$1,168,000. $©%51,168,000/%8 T °
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32. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 32. AEALTRRERS

In addition to those balances disclosed elsewhere in these MRz Eme M ms M E o i EE 2 %
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into LREMIN REBEGEIT I ERBEA
the following material related party and connected TREAERZS-
transactions.
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEBEASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEFBABZHM (BEMT1267
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors BEXNTARRGBEEZHIEB)AT:

as disclosed in Note 12 is as follows:

2023 2022
—=E_= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FABT
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances BExHe e RAR
and other benefits H b3 | 1,085 1,297
Retirement benefit RRAEF]
scheme contributions STHEIE R 15 18
Share-based payments VARR 0 2R B8 2 153K - 828
1,100 2,143
(b) Connected transactions (b) BEXRS
2023 2022
—E-= —E-
Name of connected parties  Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BEALTER RaME FE T FAET
Goal Creation Game Limited Interest income from loan to an - 182
associate (Note 20)
BlE AR AR M — @SR R EE AT B U A
(K1:#20)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33. IR BERZFAR
The Company has in place convertible bonds and share ARABIRAEBEF EERBEMRKRYA
option scheme for directors, employees and advisors of BMRE S LEBRESE - TGS R B
the Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share Mtz FEWT :
options are as follows:
Convertible bonds ARRES
Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4 Tranche 5 2022 CB
“E-F
ZoH E3H FAH #5655 ARES
Principal amount PNk HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$19,000,000
5,000,000% 5,000,000%7 5,000,000%7 5,000,000% 7 19,000,000/ 7T
Share price* BRE* HK$0.035 HK$0.035 HK$0.035 HK$0.035 HK$0.212
0.035% T 0.035% 7t 0.035% 7 0.035% T 0.212% 7t
Interest ME Zero coupon Zero coupon Zero coupon Zera coupon Zero coupan
8 8 8 8 8
Conversion price BRME (H2) HK$5.3 HK$5.3 HK$5.3 HK$5.3 HK$0.275
(note 2)
5.387T 5.3 5.387L 5.387T 0.275% 7T
Maturity date (note 1) EIE88 (Kf:1) 1 June 2022 1 June 2023 1 June 2024 1 June 2025 31 December
2025
—To-F —E-=F ZTZME “E-RfF “T-hEF
~NA—H ~A—AH ~A—H ~A—R +zZA=+-H
*  Share price as at 31 March 2020 for Tranche 2 to Tranche 5, FRHEFEN T _FEF=-A=1+—H

which is the date of undertaking by the bondholder given to
the Company to extend the maturity dates of the convertible
bonds by one year. Share price for 2022 CB represent share
price as at 17 March 2022 which is the issue date of 2022

CB.
note 1: Tranche 2 to Tranche 5 of convertible bonds had been
extinguished during the year ended 31 March 2022.
Please refer to note 28 for details.
note 2: Conversion price for Tranche 2 to Tranche 5 are

conversion price before extinguishment.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share Option Scheme

Details of specific categories of options are as follow:

The fair value of share options which were calculated
by binomial option pricing model with the following

assumptions:

Option type: BRI

Grant date: R AE:

Number of options granted: REERESA -

Exercise period: 1T H -

Exercise price: T8 :

Adjusted exercise price: RRREITR(E:
(note) (Hy7%)

Fair value: NFfE:

Option type:

Share price as at grant date:
Nature of the options:
Risk-free rate:

Expected life of the options:
Expected volatility:

Expected dividend yield:
Exercise multiple:

Closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of the grant of the aforesaid share

options (i.e. 5 July 2021)

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company's share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.

note: The exercise price was adjusted due to share consolidation

on 2 May 2018 and 16 March 2022.

33. LIRfrBBERZM™R e
WA R
HERBIBBREF BT

@EFH “HABBREEBRAE ZBARE

NEETERAATRE:
2018A 2020A 2021A
17-9-2018 14-7-2020 6-7-2021
—N\F —E-% —ET-—F
NATEH +A+mA +ARH
180,000,000 25,500,000 25,620,000
17-9-2018- 14-7-2020- 6-7-2021-
16-9-2023 13-7-2025 5-7-2026
—N\F —E-THF —E-—F
NLA+TtRZE +tA+TMEE +tARAZE
—E-=F —ZE-RF —ERF
NAT~E +A+=H +AEH
HK$0.042/5 ¢ HK$0.07475 ¢ HK$0.084%E ¢
HK$1.68/5 T HK$0.74/5 ¢ HK$0.84/5 ¢

HK$2,181,000/& T  HK$893,000/& T HK$1,168,000/% T

TR A R 2021A
REHBHZRE: HK$0.084/% 7T
Bl ME: Call R
b 0.735%
BB HE 2 TEHAF HA 5 years 4
TEHRR IR 76.2%
TAEARR Bl as X - 0%
RESEL & 2.80

RARRMMNEZERSE bt
BREEH (=%
+tARR)ZHTE

HK$0.084% 7T

TAHPRIE T AR R R D B 1% 2 B K
REZE-FAHRENBERE /EE - TH
WABBRRWEEE A Y EFTRF
BERRKEATE-

Miat: BHRBRHOEH TEEENRZZ—LF
RAAZARZTEZ—_F=A+ AR
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. EEMBLATZERE
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2023 RZE_=ZF=ZA=+—H WBRAZ
are as follows: ESR NN
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital ~ AAREL2RAEE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Rl legal entity BRR activities
(o] NGRS EEHY EEERER BERE/HMER Directly Indirectly FE£%
E& B
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie production
REERAA BB company 1% B
BEREART
Billon Success Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Licensing business
ERERAH BB company 1% BT R
BEREART
Bingo Cinema Investment Company ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100 Cinema investment
Limited 3 company 10,0008 ¢ ThiRE
HREFRRABRATF BREERT
Bingo Cinema Management Company  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100 Cinema
Limited 3 company 10,000% T management
HEETRERERAA ARELEAT PhRER
Bingo Management Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Management
LEEERBERLA BB company 1% services
BEREART ERRH
Bingo Movie Development Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie production
LREFEREBLA BB company 1% B
AREART
Brilliant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Cinema
FHERAH BE company 18T management
AREMEAT FhRER
Bingo Success Limited (formerly Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment holding
known as Emcom (HK) Pte Limited) &5 company 1087 REZR
RRARRE (FIR: BREERT
wEEA (FR)BRAA)
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Cartoon production
REERATA Bh company 1% TR
AREART
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. EEMBLFZHEE
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital ~ AAFEG2RAEE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries EMAL/ legal entity BRTR activities
WEBAREHE EE3H ERERER BERE/EMER Directly  Indirectly FE£%
HE R
% %
Bingo Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100 Inactive
LEREBRAR B company 100% T Iheg
BREMAF
Bingo Intellectual Praperty Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 100  Inactive
Management Limited BE company 1087 Imeg
HEEAERERARAR BREMAF
Bingo Trademark Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Inactive
HEEEARAR B company 18T Iheg
BREMAF
Brilliant Ace Holdings Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100  Inactive
ERERERAR B company 100% T Imeg
BREMAF
Power Alliance Investment Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100  Inactive
BRREBRAR Bk company 1587 Tmex
BREMAF
High Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100 - 100 Inactive
REERAF B company 100%7 (2022:Ni) (2022: Ni) Zazz
ARELEATF (B2 -%:8) (225 8)
Bingo Group — Memarigin (BGM) Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2,000,000 - B0  Inactive
Limited B company 2,000,000% (2022:Ni) (2022: Ni) E&EE%
ARELEAT (B2 -%:8) (225 8)
Lofty Gain Investments Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Movie production
REREBRLT HERUHE company 157 BE A
BREMAF
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment holding
REBR N HERUHEE company 157 REER
BREMAF
Shanghai Caike Cinema Management ~ PRC Limited liability US$100,000 - 100  Cinema
and Consultancy Limited. * (e i company 100,000% 7t management
LR REREAER AR ey BREMAF PhER

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. EEMBLTFIZHER @
(Continued)
Issued and Attributable
Place of fully paid equity interests
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
operation Type of registered capital ~ AAFEG2RAEE  Principal
Name of subsidiaries EMAL/ legal entity BRTR activities
WEBAREHE EE 3 ERERER BERE/EMER Directly  Indirectly FE£%
E& R
% %
Huichi (Shanghai) Cansultancy PRC Limited liability US$500,000 - 100  Cinema investment
Limited * (= 7 i company 500,000% ¢ &
B (L) REBARR AR MY ARELEATF
Shanghai Huichi Management and PRC Limited liability RMB100,000 - 100  Cinema investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd. * H company ;3 Fhiz g
LEEEREARRAA ARELEATF 100,0007t
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company PRC Limited liability RMBG,000,000 - 75  Cinema business
Limited* i company ARE TRk
EEEFR (L8 ERAA EREARH 6,000,000
Hangzhou Linan Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75  Cinema business
Company Limited* i company ARE FhREB
B REERERAT EREARH 500,0007t
Hangzhou Bingo Cinema Company PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75  Cinema business
Limited* i company ARE TRk
ML EERRERAR EREARH 500,0007t
Beijing Bingo Sky Culture Limited* PRC Limited liability RMB2,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
{noee 1) H company ARE R EER
EREBRELERAR #EV AEREARH 2,000,0007t
Beijing Bingo Tianji Cufture Limited* ~ PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 100  Inactive
EREBRBLBRAR HE company NG Ihex
AREART 1,000,0007
Guangzhou Gao De Digital Cultural PRC Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 51 Investment holding
Technology Limited* i company AR REER
BNROEFCHBRERRE ARELEAT 1,000,0007
* English name for identification purpose only * B L TEE AR
note: Hite
1. Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under 1. RENBEEEZR I EBEENE
PRC law.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 4. EEMBLFZHEE
(Continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEB ERFERER 2 NS E
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling 2EMBRBIZFS:
interests:
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting
principal place rights held by
of business non-controlling interests Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary ERRLBHR FERERHEZHEFE  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEARER TEEXBY RERRRELA FERERELEN/ (BB) Rt ERER
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“B-=f -—T--fF ZBIZ=f —T-- “BC=f —T-CF

HK$000  HK$000 = HK$000  HK$OOO
TER TERL TER TAT

Bingo Ginema (Shanghai) HEEYR (L) PRC 25% 25% 666 (620) (427) (1,154)
Company Limited BRAR
Individually immaterial subsidiaries % J-2fEER 2 i 787 -
with non-controlling interests ERIFEANBAR
360 (1,154)
Commitments in respect of subsidiaries ERMBE R R &R
The Group has the following commitments relating to its REBAATEAME QR G AE:
subsidiaries:
2023 2022
—E-= e —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Commitment to provide funding if called FHERERREHRESR 811 986

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED %
EEEEERERAR
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

4. FEMEBLATZHE @

TRENEAARERFFERER AL
EHBARcHMBERBE - TAMBE
i 2EEBAKE ARIFEYHEN 228 -

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

2023 2022
—E-= —E-

Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company EEk (E8) HKS$’000 HK$'000

Limited and subsidiaries BRARMKE QA FET FABT
Non-current assets ERBEE 123 -
Current assets MENEE 10,042 11,343
Current liabilities nEaE (10,566) (11,733)
Non-current liability EmEaE (1,266) (4,273)
Revenue ez 5,438 8,385

2023 2022
—E_= —E-—

Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company ke EFR (L8) HK$’000 HK$'000

Limited and subsidiaries BRARIMKE AR FET FABT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AT EERERSF, (FEi8)

- owners of the Company — RNRFEE A 1,997 (1,856)

- non-controlling interest — IR 666 (619)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) T REEZ2mEmERA (EE)

attributable to: 4BEE

- owners of the Company . VNEIE XN 2,246 (1,952)

- non-controlling interest — IR 750 (651)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBTA IR FRE (97) (696)
Net cash generated from investing WEEBFRE RS FRE

activities 134 2,937
Net cash generated from/(used in) mEESRS, (A 2RSS

financing activities FEE 406 (2,305)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HERBLTR

On 19 August 2021, the Group dispose Estrella Group
Holdings Limited (“Estrella”) to Ms. Chow Man Ki Kelly, an
executive director of the Company at a consideration of
HKS$1.

On 26 August 2021, the Company and an independent
third party, entered into a sale and purchase agreement.
Pursuant to that agreement, the Company agreed to sell
and independent third party agreed to acquire 51% equity
of Zhejiang Bingo Family Brand Management Company
Limited (“Bingo Family”) at a consideration of RMB1. The
disposal has been completed in August 2021, on which
date the control of Bingo Family was passed to
independent third party.

On 10 January 2022, the Company and a legal
representative of a PRC subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company agreed to sell and legal
representative of a PRC subsidiary of the Group agreed to
acquire 100% interest of Easybuild Assets Management
Limited (“Easybuild”) at a consideration of HK$300,000.
The disposal has been completed on 10 January 2022,
on which date the control of Easybuild was passed to
independent third party. The consideration of
HK$300,000 was collected by the Company in April
2022.

RZZEZ—F)\A+NLAB FTEBEUARE
7 7T i Estrella Group Holdings Limited
([Estrella ) HE FARBTMITEETAX
WAt

R —F A+ B KA rFHE—
BRI B=FHEIN—HEE RS REZ
WE ALNAREHEEMZBELE=FH
EREN IS RGEEEERAR ([
SR ZB1%RE- REAAREIT I
EEEOR -—_E-—F N A=K THES
REOEHEERZHEBREBIE =

RZBEZZF—A+RH XRaEAKE
—MHERBARZEARKIILEE R
FHoREZWE ARFREHLERAEE
—MHPEHBRARIZEARKRRAEZEWES
BREEEEARAA ([FE])H100% #
%= K {EA300,000F T - BAEEER
—E-__F—A+HEK SENZEH
ERZAEREBYE = -ARRRKRZ
T ZF 0 A2 WERE300,000/% 7T ©

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2023
BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The aggregate amounts of the assets and liabilities

35. HEMHRELAT (@)

MEBARRNHERHMEENEEREER

attributable to the subsidiaries on the date of disposal BT
were as follow:
Bingo
Family  Easybuild Total
Estrella EE=xR 2 #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FTHET
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEFEDY 2 64 196 262
Trade receivables JE U BR 5% - 31 - 31
Other receivables and Hth B YR TE R TR A
prepayments KIE - 288 - 288
Inventories rE - 960 - 960
Other payables and accruals — E b JE1S 5018 I fE 5T
IR (33) (1,418) (434) (1,885)
Lease liabilities HESE - (608) - (608)
(31) (683) (238) (952)
Less: Non-controlling interests &, : JF{Z A% #E 25 — (335) S (333)
Reclassification of cumulative Z:HE H =28 A E 5
exchange difference from REEF EEER
exchange reserve to
profit or loss - 42 (5) 37
(31) (306) (243) (580)
Amount due to the Company B2 & B4 QR FHIE
disposed of - 58 - 58
Gain on disposal & W 31 248 543 822
Consideration RE - = 300 300
Satisfy by: ATBN A AT
Receivable JE W 3R IE - - 300 300
*  Less than HK$1,000. * D R1,000/ 7T
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For the Year ended 31 March 2023

Bz

35.

36.

—E=F=A=+—HIFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31
March 2022 did not contribute significantly to the results
and cash flows of the Group during the year prior to the
disposal.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follow:

35.

HEME AT (@)

BE_ZT-__F=R=+—RHILFEML
ENMBRARELEN —FALESAE
BHEELRERETRENER -

FRLENBARMNRE MRSFEMR
HIFEDT

HK$’'000

FET

Cash consideration received EUIERE =

Cash and bank balances disposed of Tt & 2 He RIRITH % (262)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in  BRIHEMHBARMNE S KRS EED

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries I E R (262)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, contributions to
the MPF Scheme vest immediately. Contributions paid or
payable to the MPF scheme are charged to the statement
of profit or loss.

BRFEFIRT R

REFBRGMELABEZ AN A&E
RERBEREGIIZE2EBERY A
mblERTEEEE ([RERFE]) -87&
A AHRBUREABTEZREHRIE
REt 8l - RIFBRERFTE BEREEEY
ARREBSHEBERAZE% MRIE DTS
EHHEF EEARBRAZLERA
30,0008 7t - 58 18 & &t &l 2 KB B 53
EB-ENSEMNzREREIHARNER
KPR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2023

HE—

36.

37.

F_=F=A=+—HIFFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-sponsored retirement plan organised
by the municipal government under the regulations of the
PRC and these subsidiaries make mandatory contributions
to the state-sponsored retirement plan to fund the
employees’ retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries are based on a
percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
The Group discharges its retirement obligations upon
payment of the retirement contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement plan organised by the municipal
government in the PRC.

The Group does not have any other pension schemes for
its employees in respect of the subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong and the PRC. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023 in respect of
the retirement of its employees.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of approximately HK$806,000 (2022:
approximately HK$861,000) represents contributions
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
these consolidated financial statements to conform with
current year's presentation. Such reclassifications have no
material effects on previously reported financial position
and performance.
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37.

BEEFETR ()

AEERPREMBAR 2 RBIZPBEIER
MESEATMRAEE 2BFKEBRIKG
g AEME A RRBERER 2 RIKGT
2 REERKBIELEHIEHK - ZF
TEREAREAEREEFE X -8B
DHARRER BRELE 2 RN 1E
SmARPHR -ANEER RS EHHEE R
Z B A BR ARG &I H AR R RIR 2 Bk
HRARE L

AREBIWEBEFERPEUINZHBR
AIZEERIAMEAREHE -ARAE
EFRB R_TB_=F=RA=+—B %%
BEHNHEREZEARTHLBEEARAA

f&e

B4R A B & Pk 2 8K A 4806,000
BT (ZE 24 :49861,000/ 7T) Ty 5
AEERZFAERNAS T HEEN Z H#

e
A °

LEB#F

ETHBEFERREFEMBRRTE
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HERMEBOP AN LRBEL EERF
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BE—T-—F=-A=-+—HIFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. FAFMBRARE

COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSET kREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN $ 156,026 150,923
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith e T8 iR e &
prepayments TERTRIE 90 5,455
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBELFEY 17,999 5,272
18,089 10,727
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H fth JE AT R 1B K JE 5T 3R IE 1,790 1,726
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANLRIENGIE /S5 168,850 152,015
170,640 153,741
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAETFE (152,551) (143,014)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHERABES
LIABILITIES 3.475 7,908
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Convertible bonds Al E 5 13,146 11,501
NET LIABILITIES BEFHE (9,671) (3,592)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXARHE
Share capital [N 10,265 10,265
Reserves (G (19,936) (13,857)
TOTAL CAPITAL DEFICIENCY EREMEEE (9,671) (3,592)

The Company's statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26

ARARNFBRNBRER T _=ZF R
At ARAEESSHERKEDE I

June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHOW Man Ki Kelly

A&

DIRECTOR

EFE

HINIESEHREES:

CHOW Nga Chee Alice
B HEB
DIRECTOR
BF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREVBRFEZXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: (ECUNNE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
B T T ZTZTF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FET FHET FHET
RESULTS E4
Revenue g 5,522 8,494 6,860 22,888 38,048
Loss before taxation BT E B (8,377) (14,671) (24,894) (54,711) (25,624)
Taxation | - - (16) (131) (918)
Loss before non-controlling  #0BR FE12 A% 4 5 A1
interests &8 (8,377) (14,671) (24,910) (54,842) (26,542)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR M A (653) 892 3,422 13,367 132
Loss attributable to owners AR FIHEE AJEL
of the Company BB (9,030) (13,779) (21,488) (41,473) (26,410)
Loss per share BRER
— Basic and diluted — ERREE
(HK cents) (note)] B (Aer) (8.80) (14.77) (25.12) (48.49) (30.87)
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EB-=f T T CZTETFE —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Total assets EERE 24,160 35,407 43,948 82,342 115,251
Total liabilities afEeE (26,280) (80,760) (835,127) (50,748) (37,316)
Non-controlling interests FEER S 360 (1,154) (578) (3,937) 9,856

note: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 2 May 2019 and M3t #E-Z—HLER A -—BREXZRHE 6
share consolidation effective from 16 March 2022
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